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DIRECTORS’ REVIEW 

 

Dear Shareholders 

 

The Directors present the unaudited condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements for 

the half year ended June 30, 2024.  

 

Economy:  

 

The new fiscal year is showing tentative signs of activity pick up and external pressure easing 

with declining inflation, negligible current account deficit, stable exchange rate and upgrade in 

sovereign rating. The recovery efforts supported by IMF’s SBA, will gain traction as the 

government is engaged for a 37-month Extended Fund Facility Arrangement (EFF) program. 

Continued strong ownership remains critical to ensure that the momentum sustains and 

stabilization of Pakistan’s economy becomes entrenched. 

 

Inflation is moving towards a single digit range as CPI was recorded at 12.6 percent yoy in Jun 

and at 11.1 percent in Jul’24. The external account position continued to improve as reflected 

by build-up of reserves to US$ 9.4 bn, despite repayments of debt and other obligations. The 

rise in economic activity in line with growth outlook is likely to cause modest increase in 

imports, however improving trends of remittances and exports are expected to contain the 

current account deficit within acceptable range during the current fiscal year. Inflows under the 

IMF program will further help finance the deficit and strengthen reserve buffers. 

 

After four years, SBP Monetary Policy Committee initiated monetary easing during the period 

in review with a 150bps cut in Jun, followed by another 100bps in Jul’24. The rate cut decisions 

were driven by receding inflation and aligns with several central banks that have already 

announced rate cuts. Further cuts are expected in near term as monetary policy remains focused 

on supporting disinflation and help protect real incomes. The stock market maintained steady 

growth during the six months period with the benchmark KSE100 Index recording an increase 

of 26 percent to close at 78,445 points, reflecting improvement in investor confidence. 

 

Energy sector remains pivotal for the economic outlook and restoring its viability, minimizing 

fiscal risks through timely adjustment of energy tariffs, decisive cost-reducing reforms, and 

evading capacity expansion are key imperatives for the growth and stability of the energy 

sector. Alongside, promoting private sector and export dynamism by improving the business 

environment, removing state distortions, strong governance in SOEs and a level playing field 

are vital for improving investment landscape, particularly for projects channelled through the 

SIFC. The new IMF program is expected to cement macroeconomic stability and create 

conditions for a stronger, more inclusive, and resilient growth. Continued strong financial 

support from Pakistan’s development and bilateral partners will be critical for the program to 

achieve its objectives. 
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Financial Performance:      

 

The financial results of the Bank for the half year ended June 30, 2024 are summarized as 

under: 

 

2024 2023

Net mark-up and non fund income 32,269               31,584               

Administrative and other expenses (16,516)             (13,961)             

Operating profit 15,753               17,623               

Credit loss allowarnce / provisions and write offs - net 454                   (617)                  

Profit before taxation 16,207               17,006               

Taxation (8,136)               (8,168)               

Profit after taxation 8,071                8,838                

Basic earnings per share - Rupees 5.57                  6.10                  

 (Rupees in million) 

Six months ended June 30,

 
Profit after tax for the half year ended June 30, 2024 is reported at Rs.8.1 billion, a decline of 

9 percent yoy mainly due to reduction in markup income upon restructuring of loan to a large 

PSE during the current period. Earnings per share at Rs.5.57 for the current period compares 

with Rs.6.10 for same period last year. 

   

Aggregate revenues for the half year at Rs.32.3 billion increased by 2 percent, net markup 

remained almost unchanged at Rs.24.8 billion as contributions by price and volume changes 

were largely offset by the above referred reduction in markup income. Non markup income 

increased by 11 percent reflecting increase in business momentum and better performance of 

stock market. Operating and other expenses at Rs.16.5 billion recorded increase an 18 percent 

increase over corresponding period last year in line with high inflation levels and cost of 

additional branches added to the network.  

 

Customer deposits closed at Rs.1.4 trillion at June 30, 2024, a 9 percent growth during the 

period. Current and saving accounts constitutes 87 percent of the total deposit at the period 

end, an improvement from 84 percent. Advances registered a growth of 14 percent, from Rs. 

681 billion at year end 2023 to Rs 754 billion. The Bank recognized a net credit loss allowance 

(provision reversal) of Rs.454 million compared to a net provision charge of Rs.617 million 

for the comparable period. During the period, IFRS-9 has been adopted as per regulatory 

guidance and requisite financial disclosures have been made in the annexed financial 

statements. 

The Bank is well capitalized with adequate buffers over regulatory requirements. At June 30, 

2024, CAR improved to 19.33 from 18.35 percent while common equity tier-1 ratio improved 

to 15.50 against 15.11 percent.   
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The Bank’s entity rating was reaffirmed at ‘AA+’ (Double A Plus) for the long-term by 

Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA), with outlook assigned as ‘Stable’. The 

Bank’s strong brand and affiliation with Fauji Foundation are recognized as the key rating 

drivers, supported by Bank's experienced management team, prudent risk management 

policies, and deep-rooted relationship with clients. Lately, retention of profits in the Bank to 

bolster the capital structure is also a testimonial of support. The short-term rating was 

maintained at ‘A1+’ (A One Plus). 

 

Askari Bank continues to expand its market positioning for sustainable growth and 

commitment to improve value proposition. Branch banking comprising of both conventional 

and Islamic segments, remains the core of the franchise with an aim to expand customer base, 

build deposit market share particularly retail and low-cost deposits, improve service levels and 

increased focus on trade. Risk management will remain the key across all lines of businesses 

as environment remains challenging. The Bank will continue to pursue strong governance and 

compliance discipline and will continue to invest in talent and technology enabling its teams 

to do more to help our customers achieve their ambitions and in-turn drive Askari Bank to grow 

in the future. 

 

Acknowledgment: 

 

On behalf of the Board, we would like to place on record our gratitude to our valued customers 

and shareholders for their continued patronage to the Askari brand; our profound thanks to the 

State Bank of Pakistan, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and other regulatory 

authorities for their guidance and assistance. We would also like to place on record our 

appreciation for the efforts of the Shariah Board for strengthening shariah compliance and 

governance framework for Askari Ikhlas Islamic Banking. Lastly, we express our deepest 

appreciation and gratitude to our staff for the hard work and dedication. 

 

 

 

 

 

     -sd-         -sd- 

A. President & Chief Executive           Chairman, Board of Directors 

 

Rawalpindi: August 29, 2024 



1 19.33 18.35 CAR 2024 30

15.50 15.11

AA PACRA

A One Plus) A1+

2024 29

4



2024 30

30

2023 2024

31,584 32,269

13,961 16,516

17,623 15,753

617 454 - 

17,006 16,207

8,168 8,136

8,838 8,071

6.10 5.57 -

9 8.1 2024 30

5.57 PSE

6.10

24.8 32.3 2

11

18 16.5

9 1.4 2024 30

754 14 681 2023 84 87

454 617

IFRS-9

5



2024 30

37 SBA IMF

EFF

11.1 24 12.6 CPI

9.4

150 bps

100 bps 24

78,445 26 100 6

SIFC SOEs

6



� 

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
351 Shadman-1, Jail Road, 
Lahore 54000 Pakistan 

+92 (42) 111-KPMGTH (576484), Fax +92 (42) 3742 9907

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT 

To the members of Askari Bank Limited 

Report on review of the Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements 

Introduction 

We have reviewed the accompanying unconsolidated condensed interim statement of financial position of 
Askari Bank Limited ("the Bank") as at 30 June 2024 and the related unconsolidated condensed interim 
statement of profit or loss, unconsolidated condensed interim statement of comprehensive income, 
unconsolidated condensed interim statement of changes in equity, unconsolidated condensed interim 
statement of cash flows and notes to the financial statements for the six- month period then ended (here-in­
aher re ferred to as the "interim financial statements"). Management is responsible for the preparation and 
presentation of this interim financial statements in accordance with accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these 
financial statements based on our review. 

Scope of Review 

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review Engagements 2410, 
"Review of [nterim Financial Information Performed by the [ndependent Auditor of the Entity". A review 
of interim financial statements consists of making inquiries primarily of persons responsible for financial 
and accounting matters and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less 
in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and consequently 
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be 
identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 

Conclusion 

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying 
interim financial statements is not prepared, in all material respects in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan for interim financial reporting. 

Other Matters 

The figures for the unconsolidated condensed interim statement of profit or loss account and unconsolidated 
condensed interim statement of comprehensive income for the qua1ter ended 30 June 2024 have not been 
reviewed and we do not express a conclusion on them. 

The engagement partner on the review resulting in this independent auditor's review report is M. Rehan 
Chughtai. 

Lahore 

Date: 29 August 2024 

UDJN: RR2024101834v3A WfnmM 

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co .. a Partnership firm registered in Pakistan and a 

member firm of the KPMG global organization or independent member firms 
affiliated with KPMG International L1m1ted, a private English company 
hm1ted by guarantee 

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

RR1624 



ASKARI BANK LIMITED

Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2024

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31, 

2024 2023

Note (Rupees in '000)

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks 6 119,301,623 160,087,394 

Balances with other banks 7 12,160,356 13,789,031 

Lendings to financial institutions 8 86,184,640 - 

Investments 9 1,370,949,485 1,182,537,688 

Advances 10 717,280,136 633,132,827 

Property and equipment 11 19,929,712 18,698,072 

Right-of-use assets 12 9,576,179 8,312,812 

Intangible assets 13 1,945,725 1,855,607 

Assets held for sale 14 1,750,000 1,750,000 

Deferred tax assets 15 10,206,746 8,072,702 

Other assets 16 119,766,451 95,769,826 

Total Assets 2,469,051,053 2,124,005,959 

LIABILITIES

Bills payable 17 13,561,049 12,394,336 

Borrowings 18 862,532,195 643,362,665 

Deposits and other accounts 19 1,413,602,627 1,293,145,575 

Lease liabilities 20 11,351,842 9,699,474 

Subordinated debts 21 12,000,000 12,000,000 

Deferred tax liabilities - - 

Other liabilities 22 55,868,171 56,281,088 

Total Liabilities 2,368,915,884 2,026,883,138 

NET ASSETS 100,135,169 97,122,821 

REPRESENTED BY

Share capital 14,492,992 14,492,992 

Reserves 75,293,592 57,739,655 

Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 23 7,771,927 4,458,362 

Unappropriated profit 2,576,658 20,431,812 

100,135,169 97,122,821 

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24

-sd- -sd- -sd- -sd-

Chief Financial Officer / A. President & CE Director Director Chairman

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.
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ASKARI BANK LIMITED

Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Profit and Loss Account (Un-audited)

For the half year ended June 30, 2024

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

2024 2023 2024 2023

Note

Mark-up / return / interest earned 26 104,899,856     70,864,396       205,341,247     128,011,880     

Mark-up / return / interest expensed 27 92,999,916       57,979,011       180,577,331     103,190,618     

Net mark-up / interest income 11,899,940       12,885,385       24,763,916       24,821,262       

Non mark-up / interest income

Fee and commission income 28 1,725,618         1,718,135         3,457,382         3,393,147         

Dividend income 326,350            175,267            533,956            360,789            

Foreign exchange income 962,818            1,503,436         2,414,466         2,783,441         

Income / (loss) from derivatives -                   -                   -                   -                   

Gain on securities 29 621,136            117,086            896,328            25,765              

Net gains / (loss) on derecognition of financial assets 

measured at amortised cost -                   -                   -                   -                   

Other income 30 106,312            108,452            202,823            199,804            

Total non-markup / interest income 3,742,234         3,622,376         7,504,955         6,762,946         

Total income 15,642,174       16,507,761       32,268,871       31,584,208       

Non mark-up / interest expenses

Operating expenses 31 8,257,840         7,042,106         16,236,239       13,599,088       

Workers' Welfare Fund 135,000            119,679            270,000            237,899            

Other charges 32 8,894                16,813              9,272                124,165            

Total non-markup / interest expenses 8,401,734         7,178,598         16,515,511       13,961,152       

Profit before credit loss allowance / provisions 7,240,440         9,329,163         15,753,360       17,623,056       

Credit loss allowance and write offs - net 33 (1,627,465)       675,085            (453,792)          617,276            

Extraordinary / unusual items -                   -                   -                   -                   

Profit before taxation 8,867,905         8,654,078         16,207,152       17,005,780       

Taxation 34 4,511,512         4,519,956         8,135,701         8,168,237         

Profit after taxation 4,356,393         4,134,122         8,071,451         8,837,543         

Rupees Rupees

Basic earnings per share 35 3.01                  2.85                  5.57                  6.10                  

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

-sd- -sd- -sd- -sd-

Chief Financial Officer / A. President & CE Director Director Chairman

For the half year endedFor the quarter ended

(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)
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ASKARI BANK LIMITED

Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-audited)

For the half year ended June 30, 2024

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

2024 2023 2024 2023

Note

Profit after taxation 4,356,393          4,134,122          8,071,451          8,837,543          

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account in

subsequent periods:

Effect of translation of net investment in Wholesale Bank Branch 6,984                 36,380               (61,772)              907,083             

Movement in surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of debt investments - net of tax 23 1,878,620          481,043             1,108,859          (6,545,919)         

Movement in surplus on revaluation of investments - net of tax -                     84,938               -                     12,045               

1,885,604          602,361             1,047,087          (5,626,791)         

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in

subsequent periods:

Movement in surplus on revaluation of equity investments through FVOCI - net of tax 23 956,364             -                     627,182             -                     

Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plan 367,245             287,833             367,245             287,833             

1,323,609          287,833             994,427             287,833             

Total comprehensive income 7,565,606          5,024,316          10,112,965         3,498,585          

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

-sd- -sd- -sd- -sd-

Chief Financial Officer / A. President & CE Director Director Chairman

For the half year endedFor the quarter ended

(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)
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ASKARI BANK LIMITED

Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Changes in Equity (Un-audited)

For the half year ended June 30, 2024

Exchange Share Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of

Share translation premium Statutory General Fixed / Non Un-appropriated 

capital reserve account reserve reserve Investments banking assets  profit / (loss) Total

Balance as at January 1, 2023 (Audited) 12,602,602      1,192,942        234,669           15,605,063      26,353,180        (7,549,155)          11,501,511         13,381,441          73,322,253      

Total comprehensive income for the half year ended June 30, 2023

Net profit for the half year ended June 30, 2023 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    -                      -                      8,837,543            8,837,543        

Other comprehensive income related to equity -                   907,083           -                   -                   -                    (6,533,874)          -                      287,833               (5,338,958)       

-                   907,083           -                   -                   -                    (6,533,874)          -                      9,125,376            3,498,585        

Transfer to Statutory reserve -                   -                   -                   883,754           -                    -                      -                      (883,754)              -                   

Transfer to General reserve -                   -                   -                   -                   13,381,441        -                      -                      (13,381,441)         -                   

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity

Bonus shares issued 1,890,390        -                   (234,669)          -                   (1,655,721)         -                      -                      -                       -                   

Balance as at June 30, 2023 (Un-audited) 14,492,992      2,100,025        -                   16,488,817      38,078,900        (14,083,029)        11,501,511         8,241,622            76,820,838      

Total comprehensive income for the six months ended December 31, 2023

Net profit for the six months ended December 31, 2023 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    -                      -                      12,597,116          12,597,116      

Other comprehensive income related to equity -                   (187,799)          -                   -                   -                    7,715,706           126,715              50,245                 7,704,867        

-                   (187,799)          -                   -                   -                    7,715,706           126,715              12,647,361          20,301,983      

Transfer to Statutory reserve -                   -                   -                   1,259,712        -                    -                      -                      (1,259,712)           -                   

Transfer to General reserve -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    -                      -                      -                       -                   

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of assets to unappropriated profit - net of tax -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    -                      (802,541)             802,541               -                   

Balance as at December 31, 2023 (Audited) 14,492,992      1,912,226        -                   17,748,529      38,078,900        (6,367,323)          10,825,685         20,431,812          97,122,821      

Effect of reclassification on adoption of IFRS 9 (net of tax) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    1,766,774           -                      416,924               2,183,698        

Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 - ECL (net of tax) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    -                      -                      (5,661,067)           (5,661,067)       

Balance as at December 31, 2023 - restated 14,492,992      1,912,226        -                   17,748,529      38,078,900        (4,600,549)          10,825,685         15,187,669          93,645,452      

Total comprehensive income for the half year ended June 30, 2024

Net profit for the half year ended June 30, 2024 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    -                      -                      8,071,451            8,071,451        

Other comprehensive income related to equity -                   (61,772)            -                   -                   -                    1,736,041           -                      367,245               2,041,514        

-                   (61,772)            -                   -                   -                    1,736,041           -                      8,438,696            10,112,965      

Transfer to Statutory reserve -                   -                   -                   807,145           -                    -                      -                      (807,145)              -                   

Transfer to General reserve -                   -                   -                   -                   16,808,564        -                      (16,808,564)         p -                   

Gain on disposal of equity securities measured at FVOCI - net of tax -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    (189,250)             -                      189,250               -                   

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity

Final dividend 2023: Rs. 2.5 per share -                   -                   -                   -                   -                    -                      -                      (3,623,248)           (3,623,248)       

Balance as at June 30, 2024 (Un-audited) 14,492,992      1,850,454        -                   18,555,674      54,887,464        (3,053,758)          10,825,685         2,576,658            100,135,169    

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

-sd- -sd- -sd- -sd-

Chief Financial Officer / A. President & CE Director Director Chairman

(Rupees in '000)
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ASKARI BANK LIMITED

Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Cash Flow Statement (Un-audited)

For the half year ended June 30, 2024

June 30, June 30, 

2024 2023

Note (Rupees in '000)

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before taxation 16,207,152         17,005,780         

Less: dividend income (533,956)             (360,789)             

15,673,196         16,644,991         

Adjustments:

Depreciation 634,407              472,859              

Amortization 110,749              82,922                

Depreciation on ROU assets 1,079,163           811,224              

Markup expense on lease liability 697,985              495,230              

Termination of lease contracts under IFRS - 16 Leases (5,524)                 (9,900)                 

Fair value loss on recognition of financial asset at fair value 259,574              -                      

Charge for defined benefit plan 333,264              256,877              

Credit loss allowance and write offs - net 33 (400,480)             663,472              

Unrealised gain on securities measured at FVTPL (577,883)             (9,476)                 

Gain on sale of property and equipment (6,687)                 (4,019)                 

2,124,568           2,759,189           

17,797,764         19,404,180         

(Increase) / decrease in operating assets

Lendings to financial institutions (86,184,576)        321,795              

Securities classified as FVPL / HFT 332,123              274,747              

Advances (98,244,094)        (39,474,073)        

Other assets (excluding advance taxation) (15,714,400)        (17,149,438)        

(199,810,947)      (56,026,969)        

Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities

Bills payable 1,166,713           16,083,723         

Borrowings from financial institutions 219,169,530       306,923,780       

Deposits 120,457,052       127,052,463       

Other liabilities (1,816,479)          9,884,853           

338,976,816       459,944,819       

Net cash generated from operations 156,963,633       423,322,030       

Payment made to defined benefit plan (131,408)             (221,353)             

Income tax paid (12,307,088)        (6,205,499)          

Net cash flow from operating activities 144,525,137       416,895,178       

Cash flow from investing activities

Net investments in securities measured at FVOCI / AFS (188,134,410)      (349,509,447)      

Net investments in securities measured at amortised cost 8,393,015           (1,635,665)          

Dividend received 531,000              333,498              

Investments in property and equipment (1,875,641)          (580,787)             

Investment made in subsidiary (700,000)             -                      

Investments in intangible assets (199,305)             (225,782)             

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 16,284                6,869                  

Effect of translation of net investment in Wholesale Bank Branch (61,772)               907,083              

Net cash used in investing activities (182,030,829)      (350,704,231)      

Cash flow from financing activities

Payments under IFRS 16 (1,325,171)          (975,538)             

Dividend paid (3,583,583)          (1,170)                 

Net cash used in financing activities (4,908,754)          (976,708)             

(Decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (42,414,446)        65,214,239         

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 173,876,425       80,627,190         

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 131,461,979       145,841,429       

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements.

-sd -sd -sd -sd

Chief Financial Officer / A. President & CE Director Director Chairman

For the half year ended
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ASKARI BANK LIMITED

Notes to the Unconsolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited)

For the half year ended June 30, 2024

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

2.2.1

-

-

-

-13-

Askari Bank Limited (the Bank) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 9, 1991 as a Public Limited

Company and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Bank is situated

at AWT Plaza, the Mall, Rawalpindi. The Bank is a scheduled commercial bank and is principally

engaged in the business of banking as defined in the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962. The

Fauji Consortium: comprising of Fauji Foundation (FF), Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited (FFCL) and

Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (FFBL) collectively owned 71.91 (2023: 71.91 ) percent shares of

the Bank as on June 30, 2024. The ultimate parent of the Bank is Fauji Foundation. The Bank has

660 branches (2023: 660 branches); 659 in Pakistan and Azad Jammu and Kashmir including 142

(2023: 137) Islamic Banking branches and 63 (2023: 63) sub–branches and a Wholesale Bank

Branch (WBB) in the Kingdom of Bahrain.

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017; 

Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the

Companies Act, 2017; and 

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting, issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements represent separate financial

statements of Askari Bank Limited. The consolidated condensed interim financial statements of the

Group are being issued separately.

The unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is

the Bank's functional and presentation currency. The amounts are rounded off to the nearest

thousand.

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements have been prepared under the

historical cost convention except that certain classes of fixed assets and non-banking assets

acquired in satisfaction of claims are stated at revalued amounts and certain investments have been

marked to market and are carried at fair value. In addition, obligations in respect of staff retirement

benefits are carried at present value.

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with the approved accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved

accounting and reporting standards comprise of:



-

2.2.2

2.2.3

3

3.1

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

4.1 IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
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There are various amendments to accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan that 

are not yet effective in the current period. These are not likely to have material effect on the Bank's 

financial statements.

During the period, as directed by the SBP vide its BPRD Circular No. 07 of 2023 dated April 13,

2023, IFRS 9: ‘Financial Instruments' (the Standard) became applicable to the Bank.  

BPRD Circular No. 03 of 2022 issued by SBP provides detailed instructions on implementation of

IFRS 9 (the Application Instructions) for ensuring smooth and consistent implementation of the

standard across banks. The SBP vide its BPRD Circular Letter No. 16 of 2024 have made

amendments and extend the timelines of IFRS 9 application instructions. 

During the year, the Bank has adopted IFRS 9 as applicable in Pakistan with effect from 01 January

2024 (refer note 4.1 for details). There are certain other amendments to accounting and reporting

standards that are mandatory for the Bank's accounting periods beginning on or after January 1,

2024. Except for IFRS 9, these are either considered not to be relevant or do not have any

significant effect on the Bank's operations and are therefore not detailed in these unconsolidated

condensed interim financial statements.

The material accounting policies applied in preparation of these condensed interim unconsolidated

financial statements are consistent with those as applied in the preparation of annual

unconsolidated financial statements of the Bank for the year ended December 31, 2023, except for

the following:

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017

or the directives issued by the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS or IFAS the

requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said

directives, shall prevail.

The State Bank of Pakistan has deferred the applicability of IFAS 3 'Profit and Loss Sharing on

Deposits', vide BPRD Circular No.04 dated February 25, 2015 and International Accounting

Standard 40, Investment Property , vide BSD Circular Letter no. 10 dated August 26, 2002, for

banking companies till further instructions. Further, the SECP, through S.R.O 411(1)/2008 dated

April 28, 2008, has deferred the applicability of IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, to banks.

Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of

these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements. 

Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan (SECP). 

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements have been presented in accordance

with the requirements of format prescribed by SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 2 dated February 09,

2023 and International Accounting Standard 34 'Interim Financial Reporting' and do not include all

the information and disclosures required in the audited annual unconsolidated financial statements,

and should be read in conjunction with the audited annual unconsolidated financial statements of

the Bank for the financial year ended December 31, 2023.

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards

that are effective in the current period

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards

that are not yet effective



4.1.1 Impact on the condensed interim unconsolidated statement of financial position:

The effect of this change in accounting policy on the financial assets and financial liabilities is as follows:

Financial Asset / Liabilities

Balances as of 

December 31, 

2023 (Audited)

Remeasurements / 

reclassifications

Recognition of 

expected credit 

loss (ECL) 

Balances as of 

January 01, 

2024

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks 160,087,394         -                          -                         160,087,394       

Balances with other banks 13,789,031           -                          (172)                       13,788,859         

Investments

- Classified as available for sale 1,124,989,158      (1,124,989,158)       -                         -                      

- Classified as fair value through other

comprehensive income -                        1,105,542,060        (166,857)                1,105,375,203    

- Classified as held to maturity 56,798,998           (56,798,998)            -                         -                      

- Classified as amortised cost -                        74,879,606             -                         74,879,606         

- Classified as held for trading 552,832                (552,832)                 -                         -                      

- Classified as fair value through 

profit or loss -                        6,201,322               -                         6,201,322           

1,182,340,988      4,282,000               (166,857)                1,186,456,131    

Advances

 Gross amount 661,308,049         -                          -                         661,308,049       

- Provision (28,175,222)          -                          (10,322,295)           (38,497,517)        

633,132,827         -                          (10,322,295)           622,810,532       

Other assets - financial assets 90,069,257           -                          (383,971)                89,685,286         

LIABILITIES

Bills payable 12,394,336           -                          -                         12,394,336         

Borrowings 643,362,665         -                          -                         643,362,665       

Deposits and other accounts 1,293,145,575      -                          -                         1,293,145,575    

Subordinated debt 12,000,000           -                          -                         12,000,000         

Other liabilities - financial liabilities 45,249,204           -                          226,837                 45,476,041         

2,006,151,780      -                          226,837                 2,006,378,617    
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The standard addresses recognition, classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial

liabilities. The standard has also introduced a new impairment model for financial assets which requires recognition of

impairment charge based on ‘expected credit losses' (ECL) approach rather than ‘incurred credit losses' approach as

previously followed. The ECL has impact on all the assets of the Bank which are exposed to credit risk. 

The Bank has adopted IFRS 9 in accordance  with the Application Instructions from January 1, 2024, using the modified

retrospective approach and has not restated comparatives for the 2023 reporting period and the differences in carrying

amount of financial assets and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised in retained earnings

and reserves as at 1 January 2024, as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in the Standard. Accordingly, the

information presented for 2023 does not reflect the requirements of IFRS 9 and therefore is not comparable to the

information presented for 2024 under IFRS 9. The accounting policies applicable to the 2023 presented information is

consistent with the policies mentioned in 31 December 2023 annual financial statements.

SBP vide its BPRD Circular Letter No. 16 of 2024 have made certain amendments and extended timelines of application

instructions for certain areas where the banking industry has sought more time. These amendments and relaxations

include use modification accounting for financial assets and liabilities as per IFRS 9 standard and recording and treatment

of staff loan and advances at reduced rates to given effect from 1 October 2024. Further, the banks have been asked to

use existing practices of recordings of interest/markup income using effective interest rate and ensure full recognition from

1 October 2024, this in turn also effects the reduced rate loans and modified assets accounting. Moreover, SBP have

allowed an extension to Banks up to December 31, 2024 for developing the requisite models for calculating EAD for

revolving products beyond the contractual date. In addition the banks have also been allowed to continue the existing

practice of valuing unquoted equity investment at their cost or breakup value, whichever is lower, till 31 December 2024

and perform fair valuation of these securities afterwards.

(Rupees in '000)



Measurement 

Category – before 

adoption of IFRS 9

Measurement 

Category - after 

adoption of IFRS 9

Carrying amount at 

December 31, 2023 – 

before adoption of 

IFRS 9

Carrying amount 

at January 01, 

2024 - after 

adoption of IFRS 9

Loans and 

receivables

Amortised cost 160,087,394              160,087,394          

Loans and 

receivables

Amortised cost 13,789,031                13,788,859            

Held for trading Fair value through 

profit or loss

552,832                     552,832                 

Available for sale Fair value through 

profit or loss

5,648,490                  5,648,490              

Available for sale Fair value through 

other comprehensive 

income

1,105,542,060           1,105,375,203       

Available for sale Amortised cost 13,798,608                18,080,608            

Held to maturity Amortised cost 56,798,998                56,798,998            

Loans and 

receivables

Amortised cost 633,132,827              622,810,532          

Loans and 

receivables

Amortised cost 90,069,257                89,685,286            

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost 12,394,336                12,394,336            

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost 643,362,665              643,362,665          

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost 1,293,145,575           1,293,145,575       

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost 12,000,000                12,000,000            

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost 45,249,204                45,476,041            

4.1.2 Impact on reserve of deficit on revaluation of investments:

Impact of 

adopting IFRS 9 

at January 1, 

2024
Rupees in '000

Closing balances as at December 31, 2023 (6,367,323)          

Reclassification of investment securities (debt) from available-for-sale to amortised cost 4,282,000           

Reclassification of net surplus on investment securities (debt and equity) from 

available-for-sale to FVTPL (220,594)             

Reclassification of provision for diminution in value of investment securities 

(equity) from available-for-sale to FVOCI (597,143)             

Recognition of expected credit losses under IFRS 9 for debt financial assets at FVOCI -                      

Related tax (1,697,489)          

1,766,774           

Opening balance under IFRS 9 as at January 1, 2024 (4,600,549)          

4.1.3 Impact on Retained Earnings

Closing balances as at December 31, 2023 20,431,812         

Reclassification under IFRS 9 (net of tax) 416,924              

Recognition of expected credit losses under IFRS 9 (11,100,132)        

Related tax 5,439,065           

(5,661,067)          

Opening balance under IFRS 9 as at January 1, 2024 15,187,669         

-16-

Other assets 

Other liabilities

Rupees in '000

The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement categories under the regulation

established by the regulator / SBP and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Bank’s

financial assets / liability as at 1 January 2024:

Financial Asset / Liabilities 

Cash and balances with treasury 

banks

Bills payable

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Subordinated debt

Investments

Advances

Balances with other banks



4.1.4 Impact on regulatory capital

The impact of adoption of IFRS 9 on the capital ratios of the Bank are as follows:

As per

previous

Reporting

(31 December 

2023)

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio 15.11% 14.15%

Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 16.08% 15.12%

Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 18.35% 17.52%

4.1.5 Classification and measurement 

Recognition / derecognition and initial measurement

Classification

Financial Assets

Moreover, SBP has allowed to adjust the amount of Stage 1 and Stage 2 provisions in Tier 2

Capital that have not been added back to CET 1 and vice versa as per Annexure-A of BPRD

Circular no 16 of 2024.

At 1 January 

2024 after 

adoption of 

IFRS 9

In order to mitigate the impact of ECL models on capital, SBP has determined that it may be

appropriate for the banks to introduce a transitional arrangement for the impact on regulatory

capital from the application of ECL accounting. Annexure B of the 'Application Instructions' issued

by SBP has detailed the transitional arrangement.

The transitional arrangement applies only to provisions for stage 1 and stage 2 financial assets.

The transitional arrangement must adjust CET1 capital. Where there is a reduction in CET1 capital

due to new provisions, net of tax effect, upon adoption of an ECL accounting model, the decline in

CET1 capital (the “transitional adjustment amount”) must be partially included (i.e., added back) to

CET1 capital over the “transition period” of five years.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or

FVTPL.

Under the new standard, classification and measurement of financial assets depends on how these

are managed based on business model and their contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial

assets that do not meet the Solely Payment of Principal and Interest (SPPI) criteria are required to

be measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) regardless of the business model in which

they are held. 

Trade receivable and debt securities issued are initially recorded when they are originated. All other

financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Bank becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or

financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs

that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant

financing component is initially measured at transaction price.

The policy for derecognition of financial asset and liabilities are consistent with the annual

unconsolidated financials statements of the bank for the year ended December 31, 2023.
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-

-

-

-

Financial Liabilities

4.1.6 Business model assessment

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect

contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

SPPI.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

SPPI.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair

value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows

nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

Financial liabilities are either classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), when they are

held for trading purposes, or at amortised cost. Financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are

measured at fair value and all the fair value changes are recognized in profit and loss account.

Financial liabilities classified at amortised cost are initially recorded at their fair value and

subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method. Markup expense and foreign

exchange gain and losses are recognised in profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is

also recognised in profit and loss.

A financial asset is classified as either Held to collect, Held to collect and sale and Others based on

Business model assessment. The Bank makes an assessment of the objective of a business model

in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business

is managed, and information is provided to management. The assessment requires judgement

based on facts and circumstances on the date of assessment.

-18-

IFRS 9 allows entities to irrevocably designate, at initial recognition, a financial asset as measured

at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces any 'accounting mismatch' that would

otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing gains and losses on them on

different basis. SBP instructions state that banks may apply the fair value option if, in addition to the

IFRS 9 criterion, (a) it is consistent with a documented risk management strategy, and (b) fair

values are reliable at inception and throughout life of the instrument. Nonetheless, banks should

avoid this option for financial instruments that are categorized as Level 3 in terms of the IFRS 13

hierarchy.

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cashflows and selling financial assets; and

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Bank may irrevocably

elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-

investment basis.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Bank changes

its business models for managing financial assets, in which cases all affected financial assets are

reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following changes in the business model.



4.1.7

4.1.8 Subsequent measurement

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

4.1.9 Modification

Financial assets

The Bank sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to its

customers. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows

from the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial

asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value plus any eligible

transaction costs.

The banks are allowed to continue measuring unquoted equity securities at the lower of cost or

break-up value up to December 31, 2024. However, Bank shall be required to measure unquoted

equity securities at fair value, as required in the IFRS 9 application instructions, with effect from

January 1, 2025.

A prepayment feature aligns with SPPI if it mainly represents unpaid principal and profit, including

reasonable compensation for early termination. 

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains

and losses, including any markup or dividend income, are

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at 

amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by

impairment losses. Markup, foreign exchange gains and losses and 

impairment are recognised in profit or loss.

For fixed-rate financings with periodic profit rate resets, the Bank considers these SPPl-compliant

as the revised rates reflect time value, credit risk, and other associated risks. 

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value and is

assessed for impairment under the new ECL model. Markup

income is calculated using the effective interest method and

includes amortization of premiums and accretion of discount,

foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised

in income statement. Other net gains and losses are recognised in

OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are

reclassified to income statement.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends

are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend

clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment,

in which case they are adjusted from the carrying value of

investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and

are never reclassified to income statement.
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The Bank assesses whether the contractual cash flows of a financial asset meet the Solely

Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) criterion by examining the contractual terms. This

includes checking for terms that could alter the amount and timings of cash flows, such as

contingent events, leverage, or prepayment features, etc. 

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

(SPPI)

The assessment considers the policies and objectives for the portfolio of financial assets, risk

affecting, performance evaluation, historical sales information etc. 



Financial liabilities

4.1.10 Impairment

-
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The impairment requirements apply to financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI

(other than equity instruments), lease receivables, and certain loan commitments and financial

guarantee contracts. At initial recognition, an impairment allowance (or provision in the case of

commitments and guarantees) is required for expected credit losses (‘ECL’) resulting from default

events that are possible within the next 12 months (’12-month ECL’). In the event of a significant

increase in credit risk, a provision is required for ECL resulting from all possible default events over

the expected life of the financial instrument (‘lifetime ECL’).

Financial assets where 12-month ECL is recognized are in 'Stage 1'; financial assets that are

considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk are in 'Stage 2'; and financial

assets for which there is objective evidence of impairment, so are considered to be in default or

otherwise credit impaired, are in 'Stage 3'. Under the SBP's instructions, the Bank is not required to

compute ECL on Government Securities and on Government guaranteed credit exposure in local

currency. 

Based on the requirements of IFRS 9 and SBP's IFRS 9 application instructions, the Bank has

performed an ECL assessment considering the following key elements: 

PD: The probability that a counterparty will default over the next 12 months from the reporting

date (12-month ECL, Stage1) or over the lifetime of the product (lifetime ECL, Stage 2).

The Bank derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the

modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the

modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the

financial liability recognized and consideration paid is recognized in profit or loss. Consideration

paid includes non-financial assets transferred, if any, and the assumption of liabilities, including the

new modified financial liability.

If the modification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the amortised

cost of the liability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective

interest rate and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial

liabilities, the original effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is

adjusted to reflect current market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred

are recognized as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability and amortised over the

remaining term of the modified financial liability by re-computing the effective interest rate on the

instrument.

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the

modification is usually to maximise recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to originate

a new asset with substantially different terms. If the bank plans to modify a financial asset in a way

that would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of the asset

should be written off before the modification takes place. This approach impacts the result of the

quantitative evaluation and means that the derecognition criteria are not usually met in such cases.

If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or FVOCI does not result in

derecognition of the financial asset, then the bank first recalculates the gross carrying amount of

the financial asset using the original effective interest rate of the asset and recognized the resulting

adjustment as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. Any costs or fees incurred, and fees

received as part of the modification adjust the gross carrying amount of the modified financial asset

and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial asset.



-

-

4.1.11 Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

A financial asset is transitioned to a backward stage in line with SBP instructions. 

4.1.12 Governance, ownership and responsibilities

4.2 Revised format of condensed interim financial statements

The adoption of revised format has resulted in following significant changes:

-

-
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LGD: An estimate of the loss incurred on a facility upon default by a customer. LGD is

calculated as the difference between contractual cash flows due and those that the Bank

expects to receive, including from the liquidation of any form of collateral. It is expressed as a

percentage of the exposure outstanding on the date of classification of an obligor.

The SBP through its BPRD Circular No. 02 dated February 9, 2023, and BPRD Circular Letter No.

07 of 2023 dated April 13, 2023, has amended the format of quarterly and half yearly financial

statements of banks. All banks are directed to prepare their quarterly and half yearly financial

statements on the revised format effective from accounting year starting from January 1, 2024.

Accordingly, the Bank has prepared these condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements

on the new format prescribed by the SBP.

Right-of-use-assets (note 12) amounting to Rs 9,576,179 thousand (December 31, 2023: Rs

8,312,812 thousand) which were previously shown as part of fixed assets are now shown

separately on the unconsolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities (note 20) amounting to Rs 11,351,842 thousand (December 31, 2023: Rs

9,699,474 thousand) which were previously shown as part of other liabilities (note 22) are

now shown separately on the unconsolidated statement of financial position.

The Bank has adopted a governance framework requiring multiple functions to effectively work

together to ensure input from all business lines. The Risk Department defines the staging criteria for 

the new impairment model and take ownership of all models, methodologies and the ECL

calculation approach. Additionally, the Risk department also take the ownership of the impact of

ECL on bank's capital. 

The Bank's Finance Division performs ECL calculation. As a result, the department then assess the

financial impact, meet the financial reporting requirements and further monitor the impact on the

financial ratios. 

As per the Bank's policy, the Bank's Internal Audit function carries out periodic review of IFRS 9

methodology and impacts calculated by the Management.

A SICR is assessed in the context of an increase in the risk of a default occurring over the life of the

financial instrument when compared to that expected at the time of initial recognition. It is not

assessed in the context of an increase in the ECL. The Bank used several qualitative and

quantitative measures in assessing SICR. Quantitative measures relate to deterioration of Obligor

Risk Ratings (ORR) or where principal and / or profit payments are 60 days or more past due.

Qualitative factors include unavailability of financial information and pending litigations.

EAD: The expected balance sheet exposure at the time of default, incorporating expectations

on drawdowns, amortization, pre-payments and forward-looking information where relevant.



5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

6 CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Rupees in '000

In hand:

   Local currency 31,198,399    27,760,784    

   Foreign currencies 5,718,808      4,318,238      

36,917,207    32,079,022    

With the State Bank of Pakistan in:

   Local currency current accounts 56,474,614    104,626,342  

   Foreign currency current account 6,929,175      6,885,755      

   Foreign currency deposit account 13,106,172    12,873,026    

76,509,961    124,385,123  

With National Bank of Pakistan in:

   Local currency current accounts 5,841,254      3,573,496      

Prize Bonds 33,201           49,753           

Less: Credit loss allowance held against cash and balances with other banks -                 -                 

Cash and balances with treasury banks - net of credit loss allowance 119,301,623  160,087,394  

7 BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

In Pakistan

   In current accounts 67,540           2,802             

Outside Pakistan

   In current accounts 1,190,480      1,557,101      

   In deposit accounts 10,902,505    12,229,132    

12,092,985    13,786,233    

Less: Credit loss allowance held against balances with other banks (169)               (4)                   

Balances with other banks - net of credit loss allowance 12,160,356    13,789,031    

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

8 LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

Repurchase agreement lendings (reverse repo) 66,199,437    -                 

Call money lendings 20,000,000    -                 

Purchase under resale arrangement of equity securities 74,303           89,164           

86,273,740    89,164           

Less: Credit loss allowance / provision held against lending 

to financial institutions (89,100)          (89,164)          

Lendings to financial institutions - net of credit loss allowance / provision 86,184,640    -                 

Credit Loss

Lending Allowance Held Lending Provision held

8.1 Particulars of credit loss allowance

      / provision

Domestic

Performing Stage 1 86,199,437    14,798           -                 -                 

Non-performing

Loss Stage 3 74,303           74,302           89,164           89,164           

86,273,740    89,100           89,164           89,164           
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The financial risk management objectives and policies adopted by the Bank are consistent with those disclosed in

the audited annual unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Rupees in '000

December 31, 2023June 30, 2024

Rupees in '000



9 INVESTMENTS

Cost / Credit Loss Surplus / Carrying Cost / Surplus / Carrying 

amortised cost allowance (deficit) value amortised cost (deficit) value

9.1 Investments by type:

FVTPL / (2023: Held for trading)

Fully paid ordinary shares 343,338                -                       (1,621)                  341,717                534,439                -                       18,393                  552,832                

Units of mutual funds 1,781,063             -                       652,287                2,433,350             -                       -                       -                       -                       

Non Government Debt Securities 3,622,900             -                       (3,734)                  3,619,166             -                       -                       -                       -                       

5,747,301             -                       646,932                6,394,233             534,439                -                       18,393                  552,832                

FVOCI / (2023: Available for sale)

Federal Government Securities 1,288,033,016      (564,518)              (8,132,042)           1,279,336,456      1,117,640,852      (524,796)              (14,605,232)         1,102,510,824      

Shares 4,811,884             (5,680)                  2,147,114             6,953,318             4,752,010             (597,143)              1,885,567             6,040,434             

Units of mutual funds -                       -                       -                       -                       1,874,328             (168,124)              254,392                1,960,596             

Fully paid preference shares 27,314                  (2,235)                  (1,500)                  23,579                  27,314                  (11,914)                12,750                  28,150                  

Non Government Debt Securities 11,767,754           (1,303,453)           (1,332)                  10,462,969           15,836,647           (1,355,068)           (32,425)                14,449,154           

1,304,639,968      (1,875,886)           (5,987,760)           1,296,776,322      1,140,131,151      (2,657,045)           (12,484,948)         1,124,989,158      

Amortised cost / (2023: Held to maturity)

Federal Government Securities 67,072,233           (190,003)              -                       66,882,230           57,384,640           (585,642)              -                       56,798,998           

Non Government Debt Securities 110,000                (110,000)              -                       -                       110,000                (110,000)              -                       -                       

67,182,233           (300,003)              -                       66,882,230           57,494,640           (695,642)              -                       56,798,998           

Subsidiaries 896,700                -                       -                       896,700                196,700                -                       -                       196,700                

Total investments 1,378,466,202      (2,175,889)           (5,340,828)           1,370,949,485      1,198,356,930      (3,352,687)           (12,466,555)         1,182,537,688      

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

9.1.1 Investments given as collateral

The market value of investment given as collateral is as follows

Market Treasury Bills 20,455,390           13,586,080           

Pakistan Investment Bonds 775,203,500         570,673,900         

Shares 158,914                141,491                

795,817,804         584,401,471         

9.2 Summary of financial information of subsidiaries (Un-audited)

Total

comprehensive

Country Profit income for the

of incorporation Holding Assets Liabilities Revenue / Income after tax period

%

Foundation Securities (Private) Limited Pakistan 51 2,537,582             1,635,838             339,791                89,402                  -                       

Askari Currency Exchange (Private) Limited Pakistan 100 723,918                22,231                  14,899                  1,687                    -                       

-23-

Rupees in '000

(Rupees in '000)

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited) December 31, 2023 (Audited)

(Rupees in '000)

 Provision for 

diminution in value 

of investment 



9.3 Credit loss allowance / provision for diminution in value of investments

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

9.3.1 Opening balance 3,352,687         3,512,177       

Impact of reclassification on adoption of IFRS 9 (847,767)           -                 

Impact of ECL recognized on adoption of IFRS 9 166,857            -                 

2,671,777         3,512,177       

Exchange adjustments (1,093)               274,611          

Charge / (reversals)

Charge for the period / year -                    180,392          

Reversal for the period / year (494,795)           (328,207)         

Reversal on disposals -                    (286,286)         

(494,795)           (434,101)         

Closing balance 2,175,889         3,352,687       

9.3.2 Particulars of credit loss allowance / provision against debt securities

Amount 

Outstanding 

(cost)

Credit loss 

allowance 

Held

Amount 

Outstanding 

(cost)

Provision 

held

Category of classification

Domestic

Performing       - Stage 1 1,355,606,015   129,472          -                    -                 

Non-performing - Stage 3

   Loss 1,383,823          1,383,823       1,577,096         1,476,982       

1,356,989,838   1,513,295       1,577,096         1,476,982       

Overseas

Performing       - Stage 1 10,020,479        656,914          20,287,925       1,110,438       

1,367,010,317   2,170,209       21,865,021       2,587,420       

9.4

-24-

(Rupees in '000)

The market value of securities classified as amortised cost / held to maturity as at June 30, 2024 is Rs.

58,898,064 thousand (2023: Rs. 50,430,873 thousand).

(Rupees in '000)

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited) December 31, 2023 (Un-audited)



(Un-audited) (Audited) (Un-audited) (Audited) (Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
10 ADVANCES 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Loans, cash credits, running finances, etc. 562,672,076    498,706,097    27,744,488      25,198,876      590,416,564        523,904,973    
Islamic financing and related assets 136,636,633    114,772,652    4,355,830        2,781,125        140,992,463        117,553,777    

Bills discounted and purchased 20,608,553      18,765,713      2,343,084        1,083,586        22,951,637          19,849,299      

Advances - gross 719,917,262    632,244,462    34,443,402      29,063,587      754,360,664        661,308,049    

Credit loss allowance / provision 

against advances

  - Stage 1 (2,489,300)       -                   -                   -                   (2,489,300)           -                   

  - Stage 2 (2,167,883)       -                   -                   -                   (2,167,883)           -                   

  - Stage 3 -                   -                   (32,423,345)     -                   (32,423,345)         -                   

  - General -                   (2,538,527)       -                   -                   -                       (2,538,527)       

  - Specific -                   -                   -                   (25,636,695)     -                       (25,636,695)     

(4,657,183)       (2,538,527)       (32,423,345)     (25,636,695)     (37,080,528)         (28,175,222)     
Advances - net of credit loss .

allowance / (provision) 715,260,079    629,705,935    2,020,057        3,426,892        717,280,136        633,132,827    

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

10.1 Particulars of advances (Gross)

In local currency 715,258,195        622,805,589    

In foreign currencies 39,102,469          38,502,460      

754,360,664        661,308,049    

10.2

Category of classification (Stage 3) Non Performing Credit loss Non Performing 

Loans Allowance Loans Provision

Domestic

  Other Assets Especially Mentioned 276,723           252,870           133,619               1,423               

  Substandard 4,080,006        3,289,442        2,112,910            523,884           

  Doubtful 1,711,422        1,331,104        1,301,511            599,345           

  Loss 28,375,251      27,549,929      25,515,547          24,512,043      

34,443,402      32,423,345      29,063,587          25,636,695      

10.3 Particulars of credit loss allowance  / provision against

 advances Stage 3 Stage 2 Stage 1 Total

Opening balance 25,636,695      -                   2,538,527            28,175,222      

Impact of ECL recognized on adoption of IFRS 9 5,782,432        3,987,283        552,578               10,322,293      

31,419,127      3,987,283        3,091,105            38,497,515      

Charge for the period 4,211,359        274,486           190,698               4,676,543        

Reversal for the period (3,207,141)       (2,093,886)       (792,503)              (6,093,530)       

1,004,218        (1,819,400)       (601,805)              (1,416,987)       

Closing balance 32,423,345      2,167,883        2,489,300            37,080,528      

Specific General

Total

Opening balance 29,297,528      1,010,000        815,586               31,123,114      

Exchange adjustments -                   22,369             -                       22,369             

Charge for the year 2,657,741        1,152,111        52,676                 3,862,528        

Reversal under IFRS 9 related to WBB -                   (86,544)            -                       (86,544)            

Reversal for the year (2,105,630)       (108,551)          (319,120)              (2,533,301)       

552,111           957,016           (266,444)              1,242,683        

Amounts written off (2,505,910)       -                   -                       (2,505,910)       

Amounts charged off (1,707,034)       -                   -                       (1,707,034)       

Closing balance 25,636,695      1,989,385        549,142               28,175,222      

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

10.4 Advances - particulars of credit loss allowance

Opening balance (including impact of ECL on adoption of IFRS 9) 3,091,105        3,987,283            31,419,127      

New Advances 159,367           34,502                 11,322             

Advances repaid (94,267)            (96,369)                (653,799)          

Transfer to stage 1 31,330             (86,660)                -                   

Transfer to stage 2 (116,774)          239,984               -                   

Transfer to stage 3 (3,521)              (356,016)              4,200,038        

Changes in risk parameters (577,940)          (1,554,841)           (2,553,343)       

Closing balance 2,489,300        2,167,883            32,423,345      

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)

December 31, 2023 (Audited)
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(Rupees in '000)

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)

Consumer 

financing - 

General

Performing

(Rupees in '000)

December 31, 2023 (Audited)June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

Advances include Rs.34,443,402 thousand (2023: Rs. 29,063,587 thousand) which have been placed under non-performing status as detailed below:

TotalNon Performing



Loans Credit Loss Loans

Outstanding Allowance Held Outstanding Provision

10.5 Advances - category of classification

Domestic

Performing Stage 1 636,218,808  2,489,300      629,342,140  2,512,841      

Underperforming Stage 2 82,770,650    2,157,073      -                 -                 

Non-Performing Stage 3

Other assets specially mentioned 276,723         252,870         133,619         1,423             

  Substandard 4,080,006      3,289,442      2,112,910      523,884         

  Doubtful 1,711,422      1,331,104      1,301,511      599,345         

  Loss 28,375,251    27,549,929    25,515,547    24,512,043    

34,443,402    32,423,345    29,063,587    25,636,695    

Sub Total 753,432,860  37,069,718    658,405,727  28,149,536    

Overseas

Underperforming Stage 2 927,804         10,810           2,902,322      25,686           

Total 754,360,664  37,080,528    661,308,049  28,175,222    

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

11 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Capital work-in-progress - note 11.1 516,207         491,050         

Property and equipment 19,413,505    18,207,022    

19,929,712    18,698,072    

11.1 This represents advances to suppliers and contractors.

Period ended Period ended

June 30, June 30,

2024 2023

11.2 Additions to property and equipment

The following additions have been made to property and equipment during the period:

Capital work-in-progress 260,884         98,355           

Property and equipment

Renovation of premises 396,366         165,657         

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 280,587         118,694         

Machine and equipment 722,465         191,419         

Computer equipment 410,097         107,728         

Vehicles 40,969           7,716             

1,850,484      591,214         

Total 2,111,368      689,569         

11.3 Disposal of property and equipment

The net book value of property and equipment disposed off during the period is as follows:

Renovation of premises 117                -                 

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 4,982             2,193             

Machine and equipment 1,828             657                

Computer equipment 360                -                 

Vehicles 2,310             -                 

Total 9,597             2,850             

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Net carrying amount at January 1, 8,312,812      6,891,568      

Additions during the period / year 2,318,296      3,227,516      

Depreciation for the period / year (1,079,163)     (1,722,707)     

Deletions and other adjustments 24,234           (83,565)          

Net carrying amount at period / year end 9,576,179      8,312,812      

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software 1,557,677      1,496,132      

Capital work in progress 388,048         359,475         

1,945,725      1,855,607      

-26-

(Rupees in '000)

December 31, 2023 (Audited)

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

(Un-audited)

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)

(Rupees in '000)



Period ended Period ended

June 30, June 30,

2024 2023

13.1 Additions to intangible assets

The following additions have been made to intangible assets during 

the period:

Capital work-in-progress 97,518            179,625          

Directly purchased 101,787          46,157            

199,305          225,782          

14

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

15 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

(Taxable) / deductible temporary differences on

 - Accelerated tax depreciation (238,645)         (205,456)         

 - Deficit on revaluation of investments 2,934,002       6,117,625       

 - Credit loss allowance / provision against advances 7,511,389       2,160,533       

10,206,746     8,072,702       

16 OTHER ASSETS

Income / mark-up accrued in local currency 85,991,132     73,588,636     

Income / mark-up accrued in foreign currencies 1,170,984       2,134,035       

Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 900,831          655,949          

Advance taxation (payments less provisions) 7,566,795       3,897,561       

Deferred cost on recognition of loan at fair value - note 16.1 4,931,905       -                  

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 396,746          406,862          

Receivable against trading of securities 40                   46,245            

Stationary and stamps in hand 235,261          285,087          

Receivable from defined benefit plan 174,279          -                  

Dividend receivable 7,409              4,453              

Margin against stand by letter of credit (SBLC) 822,391          -                  

Acceptances 17,215,992     14,053,824     

Others 573,991          422,330          

119,987,756   95,494,982     

Credit loss allowance / provision held against 

other assets - note 16.2 (681,253)         (185,104)         

Other assets - net of credit loss allowance / provision 119,306,503   95,309,878     

Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets

acquired in satisfaction of claims 459,948          459,948          

Other assets - total 119,766,451   95,769,826     

16.1

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

16.2 Credit loss allowance / provision held against other assets

Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 4,838              4,838              

Acceptances 499,342          -                  

Others 177,073          180,266          

681,253          185,104          

(Un-audited)

This represents carrying amount of land located at Haider Road, Rawalpindi, which was classified to non

current asset held for sale in 2022 consequent to a sale agreement. The carrying amount includes revaluation

surplus of Rs. 980,987 thousand at which amount the asset was transferred from property and equipment.

-27-

(Rupees in '000)

This represents deferred portion of fair value loss arisen on initial recognition of loan to PIA Holding Company

Limited (PIAHCL). SBP through its letter BPRD/BRD/PIAHCL/733688-2024 dated August 01, 2024 has allowed

staggering of such fair value impact over a period of 6 years at rates of 5%, 10%, 15%, 20%, 25%, and 35%

from year 1 to year 6, accordingly, the Bank has amortized 5% in the current period.

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)



(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

16.2.1 Movement in credit loss allowance / provision against other assets

Opening balance              185,104              182,608 

Impact of ECL recognized on adoption of IFRS 9              383,971                       -   

569,075            182,608            

Charge for the period / year              112,178                  2,756 

Reversal for the period / year                       -                     (260)

             112,178                  2,496 

Closing balance              681,253              185,104 

17 BILLS PAYABLE

In Pakistan 13,561,049       12,394,336       

18 BORROWINGS

Secured

Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan under:

Export refinance scheme 16,610,063       19,840,120       

Long term financing facility 7,666,644         8,610,177         

Financing facility for storage of agricultural produce -                    14,770              

Renewable energy financing facility 3,900,330         3,905,513         

Refinance from SBP

Credit guarantee scheme for women entrepreneurs 33,267              12,700              

Temporary Economic Relief 10,975,245       11,947,741       

Modernization of SME 77,686              8,687                

Combating COVID-19 318,834            400,459            

Rupee based discounting of bills / receivable 3,836,642         3,707,901         

Working Capital Financing 58,900              -                    

43,477,611       48,448,068       

Repurchase agreement borrowings

State Bank of Pakistan 790,000,000     505,000,000     

Financial institutions 22,279,436       86,921,724       

812,279,436     591,921,724     

Refinance from Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company 4,747,990         2,992,873         

Unsecured

Call borrowings 2,000,000         -                    

Overdrawn nostro accounts 27,158              -                    

862,532,195     643,362,665     

In local In foreign Total In local In foreign Total

19 DEPOSITS AND OTHER currency currencies currency currencies

ACCOUNTS

Customers

Current accounts 368,482,818     31,510,568    399,993,386     320,379,384     31,589,438       351,968,822     

Savings deposits 753,683,085     69,894,547    823,577,632     667,960,330     61,519,218       729,479,548     

Fixed deposits 130,246,312     31,003,688    161,250,000     160,821,348     30,642,438       191,463,786     

1,252,412,215  132,408,803  1,384,821,018  1,149,161,062  123,751,094     1,272,912,156  

Financial institutions

Current accounts 1,260,834         138,065         1,398,899         1,149,626         241,191            1,390,817         

Savings deposits 4,247,166         -                4,247,166         2,144,906         -                    2,144,906         

Fixed deposits 23,135,544       -                23,135,544       16,697,696       -                    16,697,696       

28,643,544       138,065         28,781,609       19,992,228       241,191            20,233,419       

1,281,055,759  132,546,868  1,413,602,627  1,169,153,290  123,992,285     1,293,145,575  

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

20 LEASE LIABILITIES

Outstanding amount at the beginning of the period / year 9,699,474         8,084,073         

Additions during the period / year 2,318,296         3,227,516         

Lease payments including interest (1,247,372)        (2,523,755)        

Interest expense for the period / year 697,985            1,061,886         

Termination and other adjustments (116,541)           (150,246)           

Outstanding amount at the end of the period / year 11,351,842       9,699,474         

20.1 Liabilities Outstanding

Not later than one year 1,082,448         1,143,794         

Later than one year and upto five years 4,160,693         3,925,528         

Over five years 6,108,701         4,630,152         

Total at the end of the period / year 11,351,842       9,699,474         
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 Rupees in '000 

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited) December 31, 2023 (Audited)



(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

21 SUBORDINATED DEBTS

Term Finance Certificates - VI (ADT-1) 6,000,000                           6,000,000                      

Term Finance Certificates - VII 6,000,000                           6,000,000                      

12,000,000                         12,000,000                    

21.1

Outstanding amount - 

Rupees in '000 6,000,000               6,000,000                           

Issue amount Rupees 6,000 million Rupees 6,000 million

Issue date July 03, 2018 March 17, 2020

Maturity Date Perpetual March 16, 2030

Rating AA- AA

Security Unsecured Unsecured

Listing Listed Listed

Profit payment frequency Payable six monthly Payable quarterly

Redemption Perpetual 109-120th month: 100%

Profit Rate Base Rate plus 1.50% Base Rate plus 1.20%

Call option

Lock-in-clause

Loss absorption clause

(Rupees in '000)

Term Finance Certificates - VI (ADT-1)

The Bank has raised unsecured sub-ordinated loans through issuance of Term Finance Certificates to improve the Bank's capital

adequacy. Liability to the TFC holders is subordinated to and rank inferior to all other indebtedness of the Bank including deposits

and is not redeemable before maturity without prior approval of the SBP. The salient features of outstanding issues are as follows:

Term Finance Certificates - VII

Exercisable after 60th month from the date of issue 

subject to approval by the SBP.

As per the lock-in requirement for Tier II Issues,

neither profit nor principal will be payable (even at

maturity) in respect of the TFC, if such payment will

result in a shortfall or increase in an existing shortfall

in the Bank’s Leverage Ratio or Minimum Capital

Requirement or Capital Adequacy Ratio. That is, any

payment (profit and/or principal) in respect of the TFC

would be made, subject to the Bank being in

compliance with the requirement of Leverage Ratio or

Minimum Capital Requirement or Capital Adequacy

Ratio.

Exercisable after 60 months from the date

of issue subject to approval by the SBP.

Payment of profit will be subject to the

condition that such payment will not result

in breach of the Bank's regulatory Minimum

Capital Requirement or Capital Adequacy

Ratio set by SBP from time to time. Any

inability to exercise lock-in clause or the

non-cummulative features will subject

these TFCs to mandatory conversion into

common shares / write off at the discretion

of SBP.

The Instrument will be subject to loss

absorption and / or any other requirements

of SBP upon the occurrence of a Point of

Non-Viability event as per Section A-5-3 of

Annexure 5 of the Circular, which stipulates

that SBP may, at its option, fully and

permanently convert the TFCs into

common shares of the issuer and / or have

them immediately written off (either partially

or in full). Number of shares to be issued to

TFC holders at the time of conversion will

be equal to the ‘Outstanding Value of the

TFCs’ divided by market value per share of

the Bank’s common share on the date of

trigger event as declared by SBP, subject

to a specified cap.

-29-

As per Loss Absorbency Clause requirement for Tier II

capital purpose, the instrument will be subject to loss

absorbency and/or any other requirements under

SBP’s instructions on the subject. Upon the

occurrence of a Point of Non-Viability event as defined

under SBP BPRD Circular # 6 of 2013, SBP may at its

option, fully and permanently convert the TFCs into

common shares of the Bank and/or have them

immediately written off (either partially or in full).

Number of shares to be issued to TFC holders at the

time of conversion will be equal to the ‘Outstanding

Face Value of the TFCs’ divided by market value per

share of the Bank’s common share on the date of

trigger of Point of Non-Viability (PONV) as declared by

SBP subject to a cap of 245,042,630 shares.

Base Rate is  the simple average of the ask 

rate of six month KIBOR prevailing on the

base rate setting date.

Base Rate is the simple average of the ask rate of 

three month KIBOR prevailing on the base rate setting 

date



(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

22 OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency 16,360,007     22,119,508     

Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign currencies 1,363,654      1,267,444      

Unearned commission and income on bills discounted 1,822,384      2,003,160      

Accrued expenses 1,794,834      2,593,641      

Advance payments 373,598         314,319         

Acceptances 17,215,992     14,053,824     

Dividend payable 233,158         193,493         

Advance against sale of non-banking assets 461,535         461,535         

Mark to market loss on forward foreign exchange contracts 151,805         1,322,589      

Branch adjustment account 284,974         525,732         

Payable to defined benefit plan -                 67,468           

Provision for employees' compensated absences 801,248         724,890         

Security deposit against lease / Ijarah financing 3,559,885      3,485,208      

Levies and taxes payable 2,061,997      2,087,179      

Workers' Welfare Fund 1,571,596      1,301,596      

Switch settlement accounts 2,680,574      1,375,528      

Credit loss allowance / provision against off-balance 

sheet obligations - note 22.1 1,787,683      160,558         

Payable to a borrower 898,666         -                 

Others 2,444,581      2,223,416      

55,868,171     56,281,088     

22.1 Credit loss allowance / provision against off-balance sheet obligations

Opening balance 160,558         134,767         

Impact of ECL recognized on adoption of IFRS 9 226,837         -                 

387,395         134,767         

Exchange adjustment -                 133                

Charge for the period / year 1,400,288      26,319           

Reversal for the period / year -                 (661)               

Net charge 1,400,288      25,658           

Closing balance 1,787,683      160,558         

23 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of:

 - Securities measured at FVOCI - Debt (8,134,874)     -                 

 - Securities measured at FVOCI - Equity 2,147,114      -                 

 - Available for sale securities - Debt -                 (14,624,907)   

 - Available for sale securities - Equity -                 2,139,959      

 - Property and equipment 10,365,737     10,365,737     

 - Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 459,948         459,948         

4,837,925      (1,659,263)     

Deferred tax on deficit / (surplus) on revaluation of:

 - Securities measured at FVOCI - Debt 3,986,088      -                 

 - Securities measured at FVOCI - Equity (1,052,086)     -                 

 - Available for sale securities - Debt -                 7,166,205      

 - Available for sale securities - Equity -                 (1,048,580)     

2,934,002      6,117,625      

7,771,927      4,458,362      

(Rupees in '000)
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(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

24 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

- Guarantees - note 24.1 315,076,813   350,296,809   

- Commitments - note 24.2 558,937,204   506,769,966   

- Other contingent liabilities - note 24.3 1,414,970       1,429,701       

875,428,987   858,496,476   

24.1 Guarantees

Financial guarantees 4,940,529       7,400,327       

Performance guarantees 182,662,360   188,322,832   

Other guarantees 127,473,924   154,573,650   

315,076,813   350,296,809   

24.2 Commitments

Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions

- letters of credit 230,972,362   226,655,650   

Commitments in respect of:

- forward foreign exchange contracts - note 24.2.1 327,454,901   276,444,892   

- forward government securities transactions  - note 24.2.2 -                  2,000,000       

- non-government securities transactions - note 24.2.3 -                  1,174,056       

Commitments for acquisition of:

- property and equipment 262,750          255,774          

- intangible assets 247,191          239,594          

558,937,204   506,769,966   

24.2.1 Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts

Purchase 188,094,426   153,115,769   

Sale 139,360,475   123,329,123   

327,454,901   276,444,892   

The above commitments have maturities falling within one year.

24.2.2 Commitments in respect of government securities transactions

Sale -                  2,000,000       

-                  2,000,000       

24.2.3 Commitments in respect of non government securities transactions

Purchase -                  1,168,290       

Sale -                  5,766              

-                  1,174,056       

24.3 Other contingent liabilities

592,579          596,911          

822,391          832,790          

1,414,970       1,429,701       

This represents stand by letters of credit issued by a correspondent 

bank on behalf of the Bank.

(Rupees in '000)

These represent certain claims by third parties against the Bank, which are

being contested in the Courts of law. Based on legal advice and / or

internal assessment, management is confident that the matters will be

decided in Bank’s favor and the possibility of any outcome against the

Bank is remote and accordingly no provision has been made in these

condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.
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25 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Period ended Period ended

June 30, June 30,

2024 2023

26 MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

On:

Loans and advances 69,894,403     51,765,694     

Investments 133,004,997   75,416,614     

Lendings to financial institutions 678,911         72,958           

Balances with banks 527,887         239,575         

Securities purchased under resale agreements 1,235,049      517,039         

205,341,247   128,011,880   

27 MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

On:

Deposits 90,922,555     67,807,224     

Borrowings 84,987,472     32,270,412     

Subordinated debts 1,360,377      1,165,762      

2,349,368      1,451,990      

Lease liability 697,985         495,230         

Fair value loss on recognition of financial asset at 

fair value - note 16.1 259,574         -                 

180,577,331   103,190,618   

28 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Branch banking customer fees 443,257         382,800         

Consumer finance related fees 42,049           47,729           

Card related fees (debit and credit cards) 883,917         712,684         

Credit related fees 232,674         433,658         

Investment banking fees 202,327         155,433         

Commission on trade 699,417         871,295         

Commission on guarantees 746,490         634,152         

Commission on remittances including home remittances 170,148         94,390           

Commission on bancassurance 13,188           16,503           

Others 23,915           44,503           

3,457,382      3,393,147      

29 GAIN ON SECURITIES

Realised - note 29.1 318,445         16,289           

Unrealised gain on securities measured at FVTPL 577,883         9,476             

896,328         25,765           

29.1 Realised gain / (loss) on:

Federal Government Securities 269,236         (153,747)        

Shares 49,209           127,469         

Non Government Debt Securities -                 37,833           

Mutual Funds -                 4,734             

318,445         16,289           

-32-

Cost of FX swaps against foreign currency deposits / borrowings

(Rupees in '000)

The Bank does not offer derivative products such as Interest Rate Swaps, Cross Currency Swaps,

Forward Rate Agreements or Foreign Exchange Options. The Bank's Treasury and Investment Banking

Groups buy and sell derivative instruments such as Forward Exchange Contracts (FECs) and Equity

Futures (EFs).

(Un-audited)



Period ended Period ended

June 30, June 30,

2024 2023

30 OTHER INCOME

Gain on sale of property and equipment 6,687              4,019              

Rent of lockers 27,311            25,403            

Recovery of expenses from customers 163,301          160,482          

Termination of lease contracts under IFRS - 16 Leases 5,524              9,900              

202,823          199,804          

31 OPERATING EXPENSES

Total compensation expenses - note 31.1 7,965,117       6,952,448       

Property expense

Rent and taxes 85,651            72,469            

Insurance 52,631            45,924            

Utilities cost 810,119          622,111          

Security (including guards) 474,830          381,112          

Repair & maintenance (including janitorial expenses) 263,792          211,294          

Depreciation on right-of-use assets 1,079,163       811,224          

Depreciation 146,501          120,980          

2,912,687       2,265,114       

Information technology expenses

Software maintenance 520,130          334,067          

Hardware maintenance 105,534          80,107            

Depreciation 175,476          113,404          

Amortisation 110,749          82,922            

Network charges 318,086          261,287          

1,229,975       871,787          

Other operating expenses

Directors' fees, allowances 21,680            15,200            

Fees and allowances to shariah board 4,818              4,746              

Rates, taxes, insurance etc. 70,354            89,800            

Legal and professional charges 44,474            48,917            

Brokerage and commission 136,977          100,672          

NIFT clearing charges 48,923            52,342            

Repair and maintenance 440,281          401,987          

Communications 882,803          475,841          

Stationery and printing 355,899          301,362          

Marketing, advertisement and publicity 148,978          54,077            

Donations -                 524,397          

Auditors' remuneration 35,242            26,389            

Travelling, conveyance and entertainment 263,273          194,534          

Depreciation 312,430          238,475          

Security service charges 354,641          356,972          

Training and development 13,058            11,603            

Deposit premium expense 428,803          351,160          

Outsourced service cost 283,203          102,216          

Other expenditure 282,623          159,049          

4,128,460       3,509,739       

16,236,239     13,599,088     

31.1 Total compensation expense

Managerial remuneration 6,194,508       5,194,287       

Charge for defined benefit / contribution plan 521,060          423,655          

Other staff cost - note 31.1.1 1,249,549       1,334,506       

7,965,117       6,952,448       

31.1.1

(Un-audited)

(Rupees in '000)

Other staff cost includes incentive to consumer sales staff, dearness allowance, cash handling allowance, staff

group insurance, provision for severance etc.
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32 This represents penalties imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan.

Period ended Period ended

June 30, June 30,

2024 2023

33 CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCE / PROVISIONS AND WRITE OFFS - NET

Credit loss allowance / provision charge against investments - note 9.3.1 (495,888)           231,427             

Credit loss allowance / provision charge against loans and advances - note 10.3 (1,416,987)        447,517             

Credit loss allowance against other assets - 16.2.1 112,178             -                    

Credit loss allowance / (reversal of provision) against repurchase agreement lendings (64)                    (14,860)             

Credit loss allowance / (reversal of provision) against off-balance 

sheet obligations - note 22.1 1,400,288          (649)                  

Credit loss allowance / provision charge against balances with other banks (7)                      37                      

Recovery of written off / charged off bad debts (53,312)             (46,196)             

(453,792)           617,276             

34 TAXATION

Current 8,014,303          8,439,244          

Deferred 121,398             (271,007)           

8,135,701          8,168,237          

34.1 Tax status and contingencies

i)

ii)

iii)

Period ended Period ended

June 30, June 30,

2024 2023

35 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit for the period - Rupees in '000 8,071,451          8,837,543          

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares - numbers 1,449,299,207   1,449,299,207   

Basic earnings per share - Rupees 5.57                   6.10                   

-34-

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Bank, therefore dilutive earnings per share have not been

presented separately.

(Un-audited)

(Rupees in '000)

(Un-audited)

The Bank has filed tax returns for and up to tax year 2023. The assessments for and up to tax year 2023 were amended by

the tax authorities creating accumulated additional tax demand, mainly in the matters of admissibility of recoveries against

doubtful debts for Rs 1,119 million, provision for diminution in the value of investments for Rs 3,144.44 million, bad debts

written off for Rs 242.892 million, provision for substandard advances for Rs 74.95 million, Provision against other

assets/fixed assets for Rs 145.81 million, disallowance of employee benefit expenses Rs 228.680 Million, disallowance of

depreciation on lease assets Rs 773.88 and Other disallowances of expenses/credits for Rs 551.78 million. Bank’s Appeals

against these orders are currently pending before Commissioner Appeals, Appellate Tribunal and Islamabad High Court.

The management and tax advisor of the Bank are confident that these matters will be decided in favor of the Bank and

consequently no provision has been made thereon. Tax payments by the Bank against certain matters are being carried

forward as receivable, as management and tax advisor of the Bank are confident of their realization.

Tax returns of ALL have been filed for and up to tax year 2010. The returns for the tax years 2003 to 2010 were amended

by the tax authorities mainly in the matter of admissibility of initial allowance claimed on leased vehicles. On appeals filed

by ALL, partial relief was provided by the CIR(A) by allowing initial allowance on commercial vehicles. Re-assessment has

not yet been carried out by the tax department. A tax demand is however not likely to arise after re-assessment. 

Consequent upon the amalgamation with and into the Bank, the outstanding tax issues relating to Askari Leasing Limited

(ALL) are as follows:

For and up to the assessment years 2002-2003, reference applications filed by the tax authorities in the matter of

computation of lease income are pending decisions by the High Court. However, the likelihood of an adverse decision is

considered low due to a favorable decision of the High Court in a parallel case.

During the year ended December 31 2023, the Federal Government issued S.R.O 1588 (l)/2023 on 21 November 2023

under section 99D of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, whereby the banking sector was specified the sector for the payment

of additional tax on windfall income. Through said S.R.O, the Federal Government also specified the method to determine

windfall income, tax rate to be applied on such windfall income and tax years under scope. The Bank has challenged the

S.R.O through petition before the Honorable Islamabad High Court with regards to retrospective application of Section 99D

of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax years 2022 and 2023. The Honorable Islamabad High Court through its order

dated 30 November 2023 has suspended the operation of S.R.O.1588 (l)/2023 and the said injunctive order continues to

operate till date of next hearing for which no date has been fixed yet. Management based on the legal advisor opinion

believes that the bank has reasonably good chance to succeed in this case and therefore has not recognized any provision

in the financial statements. Additional tax on windfall income for tax years 2022 and 2023 is estimated to be Rs. 2,189

million.



36 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

36.1 Fair value of financial assets

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2 and level 3

Federal Government Securities

Non Government Debt Securities

Foreign Government Debt Securities

Unit of Mutual Funds

Fixed Assets and Non Banking Assets

Acquired in Satisfaction of Claims

-35-

Land and Non Banking assets acquired in satisfaction of

claims are valued on a periodic basis using professional

valuers. The valuation is based on their assessments of the

market value of the assets. The effect of changes in the

unobservable inputs used in the valuations cannot be

determined with certainty. Accordingly, a qualitative

disclosure of sensitivity has not been presented in these

condensed interim unconsolidated financial statements.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in these unconsolidated financial

statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement.

Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets (Pakistan Stock

Exchange) for identical assets or liabilities.

Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are

observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices) available at MUFAP and Reuters page.

Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

The fair values of Federal Government Securities are

determined on the basis of rates / prices sourced from

Reuters.

Non Government Debt Securities are valued on the basis of

rates announced by Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan

(MUFAP).

Foreign Government Debt Securities are valued on the basis

of rates taken from custodian of the securities which are

usually drawn from Bloomberg.

Fair values of mutual funds are determined based on their

net asset values as published at the close of each business

day.

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not

significantly different from their carrying values since they are either short-term in nature or, in the case of

customer advances, deposits and certain long term borrowings, are frequently repriced.

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the 

inputs used in making the measurements:

Forward foreign exchange contracts and 

Forward Government securities transactions

The fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts and

forward Government securities transactions are determined

using forward pricing calculations. 

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as Amortised Cost, is based on quoted market

price. Quoted securities classified as Amortised Cost are carried at cost. The fair value of unquoted equity

securities, other than investments in associates and subsidiaries, is determined on the basis of the break-up

value of these investments as per their latest available audited financial statements.

The fair value of unquoted debt securities, fixed term advances, fixed term deposits and borrowings, other

assets and other liabilities cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to the absence of a current and

active market for such assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments.



Carrying / 

Notional Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

On balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets - measured at fair value

Investments

Federal Government Securities 1,279,336,456       6,748,604     1,272,587,852    -                 1,279,336,456  

Shares 6,945,035              6,945,035     -                      -                 6,945,035         

Units of open end mutual funds 2,433,350              1,543,880     889,470              -                 2,433,350         

Fully paid preference shares 23,579                   23,579          -                      -                 23,579              

Non Government Debt Securities 14,082,135            -                14,082,135         -                 14,082,135       

1,302,820,555       15,261,098   1,287,559,457    -                 1,302,820,555  

Financial assets - disclosed but not 

measured at fair value

Investments

        Federal Government Securities 66,882,230            2,614,961     64,267,269         -                 66,882,230       

        Unlisted shares 350,000                 -                -                      -                 -                    

Cash and balances with treasury banks 119,301,623          -                -                      -                 -                    

Balances with other banks 12,160,356            -                -                      -                 -                    

Advances 717,280,136          -                -                      -                 -                    

Other assets 105,105,524          -                -                      -                 -                    

1,021,079,869       2,614,961     64,267,269         -                 66,882,230       

Off-balance sheet financial instruments - 

measured at fair value

Forward purchase of foreign exchange 188,094,426          -                (1,942,305)          -                 (1,942,305)        

Forward sale of foreign exchange 139,360,475          -                1,790,500           -                 1,790,500         

Carrying / Notional 

Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

On balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets - measured at fair value

Investments

Federal Government Securities 1,102,510,824       8,421,152     1,094,089,672    -                 1,102,510,824  

Shares 6,243,266              6,243,266     -                      -                 6,243,266         

Units of open end mutual funds 960,596                 149,958        810,638              -                 960,596            

Fully paid preference shares 28,150                   28,150          -                      -                 28,150              

Non Government Debt Securities 14,449,154            -                14,449,154         -                 14,449,154       

1,124,191,990       14,842,526   1,109,349,464    -                 1,124,191,990  

Financial assets - disclosed but not 

measured at fair value

Investments

Federal Government Securities 56,798,998            10,756,335   46,042,663         -                 56,798,998       

Shares 350,000                 -                -                      -                 -                    

Units of open end mutual funds 1,000,000              -                -                      -                 -                    

Cash and balances with treasury banks 160,087,394          -                -                      -                 -                    

Balances with other banks 13,789,031            -                -                      -                 -                    

Advances 633,132,827          -                -                      -                 -                    

Other assets 90,069,257            -                -                      -                 -                    

955,227,507          10,756,335   46,042,663         -                 56,798,998       

Off-balance sheet financial instruments - 

measured at fair value

Forward purchase of foreign exchange 153,115,769          -                (2,798,564)          -                 (2,798,564)        

Forward sale of foreign exchange 123,329,123          -                1,475,975           -                 1,475,975         

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31, 

2024 2023

36.2 Fair value of non-financial assets

Level 3 Level 3

Fixed assets

Property and equipment (freehold and leasehold land) 13,238,392    13,238,392       

Assets held for sale 1,750,000      1,750,000         

Other assets

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 856,694         866,810            

-36-

The Bank’s policy is to recognize transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the date the event or change in

circumstances that caused such transfer to takes place. There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the period.

(Rupees in '000)

The following table provides the fair values of those of the Bank’s financial assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair value

in these unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements:

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)

(Rupees in '000)

December 31, 2023 (Audited)

(Rupees in '000)



37 Segment Information

37.1 Segment details with respect to Business Activities

The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows:

Branch Corporate Consumer Islamic Foreign Head Office

banking banking Treasury banking banking operations / others Total

Profit and loss

Net mark-up / return / profit (59,765,179)      29,917,317      43,815,380         2,479,309      9,195,978        784,747         (1,663,636)     24,763,916         

Inter segment revenue - net 74,243,838        (27,607,590)     (46,984,388)        (1,864,887)     (5,289,020)       (398,712)        7,900,759      -                      

Non mark-up / return / interest income 1,233,382          2,419,469        2,904,514           287,538         435,253           1,916             222,883         7,504,955           

Total income 15,712,041        4,729,196        (264,494)             901,960         4,342,211        387,951         6,460,006      32,268,871         

Segment direct expenses 8,748,295          612,723           221,356              879,100         1,918,203        127,023         4,008,811      16,515,511         

Inter segment expense allocation 342,854             671,819           4,111                  19,810           -                   -                 (1,038,594)     -                      

Total expenses 9,091,149          1,284,542        225,467              898,910         1,918,203        127,023         2,970,217      16,515,511         

Credit loss allowance and write offs - net 25,452               (87,439)            50,993                (244,035)        1,077,331        (454,617)        (821,477)        (453,792)             

Profit before tax 6,595,440          3,532,093        (540,954)             247,085         1,346,677        715,545         4,311,266      16,207,152         

Statement of financial position

Cash and bank balances 39,192,884        -                   80,200,454         -                 11,950,327      118,314         -                 131,461,979       

Investments -                    8,936,474        1,299,782,439    -                 51,578,112      9,363,564      1,288,896      1,370,949,485    

Lendings to financial institutions -                    -                   86,184,640         -                 -                   -                 -                 86,184,640         

Advances - performing - net of credit loss allowance 12,740,141        534,067,603    -                      22,069,824    136,267,039    916,994         9,198,478      715,260,079       

Advances - non-performing - net of credit loss allowance 40,596               1,528,978        -                      69,086           381,397           -                 -                 2,020,057           

Others 1,329,565          39,362,516      50,360,164         1,873,740      14,164,378      211,021         55,873,429    163,174,813       

Total Assets 53,303,186        583,895,571    1,516,527,697    24,012,650    214,341,253    10,609,893    66,360,803    2,469,051,053    

Borrowings 1,409,009          37,669,501      814,306,592       4,747,991      4,399,102        -                 -                 862,532,195       

Subordinated debts -                    -                   -                      -                 -                   -                 12,000,000    12,000,000         

Deposits and other accounts 980,129,636      299,213,932    -                      3,201             132,994,021    1,261,837      -                 1,413,602,627    

Net inter segment balances - net (946,891,527)    223,090,999    693,692,144       18,638,517    51,420,443      3,437,514      (43,388,090)   -                      

Others 18,656,068        23,921,139      8,528,961           622,941         8,667,604        5,910,542      14,473,807    80,781,062         

Total liabilities 53,303,186        583,895,571    1,516,527,697    24,012,650    197,481,170    10,609,893    (16,914,283)   2,368,915,884    

Equity -                    -                   -                      -                 16,860,083      -                 83,275,086    100,135,169       

Total Equity and liabilities 53,303,186        583,895,571    1,516,527,697    24,012,650    214,341,253    10,609,893    66,360,803    2,469,051,053    

Contingencies and commitments 6,010,355          518,631,558    325,598,561       1,037,167      23,117,215      -                 1,034,131      875,428,987       

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)

(Rupees in '000)
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Branch Corporate Consumer Islamic Foreign Head Office

banking banking Treasury banking banking operations / others Total

Profit and loss

Net mark-up / return / profit (40,637,694)      17,975,386      39,738,449         2,213,650      5,823,754        1,121,604      (1,413,887)     24,821,262         

Inter segment revenue - net 58,025,034        (15,577,459)     (44,492,217)        (1,676,681)     (1,776,600)       (835,287)        6,333,210      -                      

Non mark-up / return / interest income 1,090,027          2,279,515        2,494,311           376,161         357,570           16,154           149,208         6,762,946           

Total income 18,477,367        4,677,442        (2,259,457)          913,130         4,404,724        302,471         5,068,531      31,584,208         

Segment direct expenses 7,360,735          491,248           210,020              753,599         1,613,145        116,030         3,416,375      13,961,152         

Inter segment expense allocation 675,266             495,989           10,506                25,972           -                   -                 (1,207,733)     -                      

Total expenses 8,036,001          987,237           220,526              779,571         1,613,145        116,030         2,208,642      13,961,152         

Provisions / (reversal of provisions) and write offs - net (188,600)           609,273           183,504              (12,751)          (40,593)            -                 66,443           617,276              

Profit before tax 10,629,966        3,080,932        (2,663,487)          146,310         2,832,172        186,441         2,793,446      17,005,780         

Branch Corporate Consumer Islamic Foreign Head Office

banking banking Treasury banking banking operations / others Total

Statement of financial position

Cash and bank balances 33,208,938        -                   129,715,500       832,790         10,058,919      60,278           -                 173,876,425       

Investments -                    9,252,065        1,102,004,077    -                 51,493,187      19,177,486    610,873         1,182,537,688    

Advances - performing - net of provision 13,991,028        469,123,014    -                      20,306,104    114,745,256    2,876,637      8,663,896      629,705,935       

Advances - non-performing - net of provision 259,102             2,237,228        -                      74,662           855,900           -                 -                 3,426,892           

Others 1,084,252          30,473,445      48,204,707         915,181         10,533,982      405,421         42,842,031    134,459,019       

Total Assets 48,543,320        511,085,752    1,279,924,284    22,128,737    187,687,244    22,519,822    52,116,800    2,124,005,959    

Borrowings 1,574,075          41,338,149      591,921,725       2,992,873      5,535,843        -                 -                 643,362,665       

Subordinated debts -                    -                   -                      -                 -                   -                 12,000,000    12,000,000         

Deposits and other accounts 879,682,209      293,376,734    -                      250                118,670,004    1,416,378      -                 1,293,145,575    

Net inter segment balances - net (852,178,144)    149,992,534    677,830,555       18,475,360    38,253,559      16,939,831    (49,313,695)   -                      

Others 19,465,180        26,378,335      10,172,004         660,254         8,249,821        4,163,613      9,285,691      78,374,898         

Total liabilities 48,543,320        511,085,752    1,279,924,284    22,128,737    170,709,227    22,519,822    (28,028,004)   2,026,883,138    

Equity -                    -                   -                      -                 16,978,017      -                 80,144,804    97,122,821         

Total Equity and liabilities 48,543,320        511,085,752    1,279,924,284    22,128,737    187,687,244    22,519,822    52,116,800    2,124,005,959    

Contingencies and commitments 6,016,566          548,078,423    276,081,621       832,790         26,459,326      -                 1,027,750      858,496,476       

-38-

(Rupees in '000)

December 31, 2023 (Audited)

(Rupees in '000)

June 30, 2023 (Un-audited)



38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties and balances are as follows:

Parent Directors

Key

management 

personnel Subsidiaries

Other related 

parties Parent Directors

Key

management 

personnel Subsidiary

Other related 

parties

Investments

Opening balance -                    -                 -                 196,700         1,420,051          -                       -                 -                 165,619         1,159,768          

Investment made during the period / year -                    -                 -                 700,000         -                    -                       -                 -                 31,081           -                    

Revaluation adjustment -                    -                 -                 -                 (500,000)           -                       -                 -                 -                 262,947             

Investment redeemed / disposed off during the period / year -                    -                 -                 -                 363,372             -                       -                 -                 -                 (2,664)               

Transfer in / (out) - net -                    -                 -                 -                 750,000             -                       -                 -                 -                 -                    

Closing balance -                    -                 -                 896,700         2,033,423          -                       -                 -                 196,700         1,420,051          

Credit loss allowance / provisions for diminution in value of investments -                    -                 -                 -                 5,680                -                       -                 -                 -                 82,113              

Advances 

Opening balance 8,108,881          -                 496,686         86,678           25,003,594        29,986,315           60                  507,549         200,000         16,783,652        

Addition during the period / year 296,730,749      13,690           493,467         -                 124,889,722      1,377,976,167      15,000           533,437         1,469,178       209,693,144      

Repaid during the period / year (300,809,697)     (13,466)          (578,278)        (86,678)          (126,413,936)     (1,399,853,601)     (15,060)          (544,300)        (1,582,500)     (213,910,777)     

Transfer in / (out) - net -                    -                 -                 -                 (12,212,093)       -                       -                 -                 -                 12,437,575        

Closing balance 4,029,933          224                411,875         -                 11,267,287        8,108,881             -                 496,686         86,678           25,003,594        

Other Assets

Interest / mark-up receivable 68,846              -                    69,882           -                 116,178             171,099                -                 68,627           -                 886,474             

Advance rent 249                   -                    -                 -                 -                    1,380                    -                 -                 -                 -                    

Acceptances -                    -                    -                 -                 103,495             -                       -                 -                 -                 -                    

Receivable from staff retirement fund -                    -                    -                 -                 174,279             -                       -                 -                 -                 -                    

Others -                    -                 -                 21,782           -                    106                      -                 -                 -                 -                    

69,095              -                 69,882           21,782           393,952             172,585                -                 68,627           -                 886,474             

Borrowings

Opening balance -                    -                 -                 -                 2,992,873          -                       -                 -                 -                 3,366,079          

Borrowings during the period / year -                    -                 -                 -                 2,000,000          -                       -                 -                 -                 1,000,000          

Settled during the period / year -                    -                 -                 -                 (244,882)           -                       -                 -                 -                 (1,373,206)        

Closing balance -                    -                 -                 -                 4,747,991          -                       -                 -                 -                 2,992,873          

Deposits and other accounts

Opening balance 39,101,224        63,502           299,420         350,869         49,059,956        38,816,364           34,614           193,107         612,265         38,455,796        

Received during the period / year 664,448,690      236,767         1,234,413       4,460,303       582,560,700      1,786,530,029      556,261         1,843,093       4,596,769       988,872,329      

Withdrawn during the period / year (658,279,464)     (222,727)        (1,202,007)     (3,637,073)     (596,915,714)     (1,786,245,169)     (521,157)        (1,707,626)     (4,858,165)     (978,274,385)     

Transfer in / (out) - net -                    (39,395)          -                 -                 (93,187)             -                       (6,216)            (29,154)          -                 6,216                

Closing balance 45,270,450        38,147           331,826         1,174,099       34,611,755        39,101,224           63,502           299,420         350,869         49,059,956        

Other Liabilities

Interest / mark-up payable 3,903,704          -                 441                -                 500,801             2,574,737             7                    2,964             -                 715,559             

Payable to staff retirement fund -                    -                 -                 -                 -                    -                       -                 -                 -                 67,468              

Acceptances -                    -                 -                 -                 103,495             -                       -                 -                 -                 -                    

Security deposits payable -                    -                 -                 -                 577,309             -                       -                 -                 -                 462,570             

Others -                    -                 77,928           -                 56,058              25                        1,667             58,608           -                 71,818              

3,903,704          -                 78,369           -                 1,237,663          2,574,762             1,674             61,572           -                 1,317,415          

Guarantees and Commitments

Contingencies and Commitments 440,747             -                 -                 -                 8,298,641          225,219                -                 -                 -                 4,476,687          

Others

Dividend paid 2,605,478          -                 -                 -                 -                    -                       -                 -                 -                 -                    

Securities held as custodian 8,962,500          -                 45,995           -                 11,493,470        13,699,456           -                 48,821           -                 10,493,034        

11,567,978        -                 45,995           -                 11,493,470        13,699,456           -                 48,821           -                 10,493,034        
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----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Fauji Consortium comprising of Fauji Foundation, Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited and Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (the Parent) holds 71.91% of the Bank's share capital at the period end. The Bank has related party relationships with entities under

common directorship, its directors, key management personnel, entities over which the directors are able to exercise significant influence and employees' funds.

The Bank enters into transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms as for comparable transactions with person of similar standing. Contributions to and accruals in respect of staff retirement benefits

and other benefit plans are made in accordance with the actuarial valuations / terms of the contribution plan. Remuneration to the executives / officers is determined in accordance with the terms of their appointment.

As at December 31, 2023 (Audited)As at June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)



Parent Directors

Key

management 

personnel Subsidiaries

Other 

related 

parties Parent Directors

Key

management 

personnel Subsidiary

Other related 

parties

Income

Mark-up / return / interest earned 145,035         12                  9,182             -                 652,501       207,620         -                 5,283             1,240             2,523,478      

Fee and commission received 881                -                 -                 -                 26,618         505                -                 -                 -                 33,577           

Dividend income -                 -                 -                 29,376           250,007       -                 -                 -                 -                 124,793         

Expense

Mark-up / return / interest expensed 4,118,564      2,982             32,890           41,579           3,205,571    4,006,138      597                21,819           8,622             2,356,502      

Charge to defined benefit plan -                 -                 -                 -                 324,040       -                 -                 -                 -                 164,141         

Contribution to defined contribution plan -                 -                 -                 -                 197,020       -                 -                 -                 -                 166,693         

Remuneration and allownces -                 -                 646,815         -                 4,818           -                 -                 545,403         -                 4,746             

Rent 1,495             -                 -                 -                 -               1,029             -                 -                 -                 -                 

Communications -                 -                 -                 -                 100,732       -                 -                 -                 -                 62,471           

Brokerage and Commission -                 -                 -                 -                 54,810         -                 -                 -                 15                  43,834           

Directors' Fee, Allowances -                 21,680           -                 -                 -               -                 15,200           -                 -                 -                 

Donations -                 -                 -                 -                 -               524,397         -                 -                 -                 -                 

Others 1,175             -                 -                 -                 -               -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

In addition to above, rent free sub-branches are operating at FFC Sona Tower, FFBL Tower and Foundation University (along with Booths and ATMs).

The term 'key management personnel' has the same meaning as defined in IAS 24 - Related party disclosures. 
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For the period ended June 30, 2024 (Un-Audited) For the period ended June 30, 2023 (Un-Audited)

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 



39 CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):

Paid-up capital (net of losses)                                                                                                                                14,492,992 14,492,992

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR):

Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital 90,070,390       88,193,637       

Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital 5,835,000         5,649,000         

Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital 95,905,390       93,842,637       

Eligible Tier 2 Capital 16,381,892       13,220,036       

Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 112,287,282     107,062,673     

Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs):

Credit Risk 421,186,699     451,392,577     

Market Risk 56,935,869       29,300,677       

Operational Risk 102,809,844     102,809,844     

Total 580,932,412     583,503,098     

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio 15.50% 15.11%

Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 16.51% 16.08%

Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 19.33% 18.35%

Leverage Ratio (LR):

Eligible Tier-1 Capital 95,905,388       93,842,637       

Total Exposures 2,962,943,716  2,611,849,837  

Leverage Ratio                                                                                                                                            3.24% 3.59%

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):

Total High Quality Liquid Assets 605,135,501     649,069,790     

Total Net Cash Outflow 267,600,907     322,740,993     

Liquidity Coverage Ratio 226.13% 201.11%

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):

Total Available Stable Funding 1,424,404,782  1,314,070,873  

Total Required Stable Funding 671,070,143     610,829,100     

Net Stable Funding Ratio 212.26% 215.13%

(Rupees in '000)
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40 Islamic Banking Business

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31, 

2024 2023

Note (Rupees in '000)

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks 11,810,076       9,944,209         

Balances with other banks 140,251            114,710            

Investments 40.1 51,578,112       51,493,187       

Islamic financing and related assets - net 40.2 136,648,436     115,601,156     

Property and equipment 880,959            543,503            

Right-of-use assets 1,909,847         1,531,349         

Other assets 17,847,441       11,787,572       

Total assets 220,815,122     191,015,686     

LIABILITIES

Bills payable 1,946,684         1,206,806         

Due to financial institutions 4,399,102         5,535,843         

Deposits and other accounts 40.3 132,994,021     118,670,004     

Due to head office 56,000,000       41,500,000       

Lease liabilities 2,366,015         1,866,177         

Other liabilities 6,249,217         5,258,839         

203,955,039     174,037,669     

NET ASSETS 16,860,083       16,978,017       

REPRESENTED BY

Islamic Banking Fund 4,600,000         4,600,000         

Deficit on revaluation of assets (1,528,387)        (1,500,789)        

Unappropriated profit 40.4 13,788,470       13,878,806       

16,860,083       16,978,017       

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 40.5 23,117,215       26,459,326       

June 30, June 30, 

2024 2023

Note

Profit / return earned 40.7 16,434,515         11,151,164         

Profit / return expensed 40.8 12,527,557         7,104,010           

Net Profit / return 3,906,958           4,047,154           

Other income 

Fee and Commission Income 200,660              153,071              

Dividend Income 9,559                  9,123                  

Foreign Exchange Income 159,442              135,720              

Gain on securities 16,032                7,100                  

Other Income 49,560                52,556                

Total other income 435,253              357,570              

Total Income 4,342,211           4,404,724           

Other expenses

Operating expenses 1,918,103           1,610,704           

Other charges 100                     2,441                  

Total other expenses 1,918,203           1,613,145           

Profit before credit loss allowance 2,424,008           2,791,579           

Credit loss allowance and write offs - net 1,077,331           (40,593)               

Profit before taxation 1,346,677           2,832,172           
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The Bank is operating 145 Islamic banking branches including 3 sub-branches at June 30, 2024 as compared to

140 Islamic banking branches including 3 sub-branches at year ended December 31, 2023.

(Un-audited)

For the period ended

(Rupees in '000)

The profit and loss account of the Bank's Islamic banking branches for the period ended June 30, 2024 is as

follows:



Cost / Credit loss Surplus / Carrying Cost / Surplus / Carrying 

amortised cost allowance (deficit) value amortised cost (deficit) value

40.1 Investments by segments:

Debt Instruments

Measured at amortised cost (2023: Held to maturity)

Non Government Debt Securities 110,000            (110,000)          -                    -                    110,000            (110,000)          -                    -                    

Measured at FVOCI (2023: Available for sale)

Federal Government Securities:

- Ijarah Sukuks 44,658,073       -                    (1,528,387)       43,129,686       43,883,854       -                    (1,483,551)       42,400,303       

- Islamic Naya Pakistan Certificates 3,271,408         (97,607)            -                    3,173,801         3,744,996         -                    -                    3,744,996         

Non Government Debt Securities 3,539,227         (423,452)          -                    3,115,775         3,618,805         (419,679)          -                    3,199,126         

51,468,708       (521,059)          (1,528,387)       49,419,262       51,247,655       (419,679)          (1,483,551)       49,344,425       

Measured at FVTPL (2023: Held for trading)

Non Government Debt Securities 2,066,000         -                    (8,048)               2,057,952         2,066,000         -                    (18,040)            2,047,960         

Units of Open end Mutual Fund 100,000            -                    898                   100,898            100,000            802                   100,802            

Total investments 53,744,708       (631,059)          (1,535,537)       51,578,112       53,523,655       (529,679)          (1,500,789)       51,493,187       

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

40.1.1 Particulars of credit loss allowance

 / provision

Federal Government Securities 97,607              -                    -                    97,607              -                    -                    -                    -                    

Non Government Debt Securities 3,773                -                    529,679            533,452            -                    -                    529,679            529,679            

101,380            -                    529,679            631,059            -                    -                    529,679            529,679            
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(Rupees in '000)

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited) December 31, 2023 (Audited)

(Rupees in '000)

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited) December 31, 2023 (Audited)

 Provision for 

diminution 



(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31, 

2024 2023

40.2 ISLAMIC FINANCING AND RELATED ASSETS (Rupees in '000)

Ijarah 4,285,865         4,681,429        

Murabaha - note 40.2.1 5,906,451         6,138,282        

Musharakah 74,517,264       55,026,157      

Diminishing Musharakah 22,502,821       22,818,065      

Salam 9,780,339         10,275,161      

Istisna 4,101,262         9,883,300        

Receivable against sale of Istisna / Salam Inventory 1,341,637         809,800           

Service Ijarah 2,270,110         2,364,132        

Wakalah 1,386,558         780,967           

Other Islamic Modes (Qard) 1,582,729         1,927,577        

Advances against Islamic assets - note 40.2.2 3,162,963         1,509,338        

Inventory related to Islamic financing - note 40.2.3 10,154,464       1,339,568        

Gross Islamic financing and related assets 140,992,463     117,553,776    

Less: Credit loss allowance / provision against Islamic financings

-   Stage 1 144,242            -                  

-   Stage 2 190,529            -                  

-   Stage 3 4,009,256         -                  

-   General -                    27,395             

-   Specific -                    1,925,225        

4,344,027         1,952,620        

Islamic financing and related assets - net of Credit loss allowance / provision 136,648,436     115,601,156    

40.2.1 Includes advance against Murabaha of Rs.174,106 thousand (December 31, 2023: Rs.449,708 thousand).

40.2.2 Advance against Islamic assets

Diminishing

Ijarah Musharakah Musharakah Salam Istisna Total

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited) 239,324     -             2,923,639  -             -                    3,162,963        

December 31, 2023 (Audited) 40,657       -             1,468,681  -             -                    1,509,338        

40.2.3 Inventory related to 

Islamic financing

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited) -             -             -             4,892,948  5,261,516         10,154,464      

December 31, 2023 (Audited) -             -             -             593,003     746,565            1,339,568        

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31, 

2024 2023

40.3 DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS (Rupees in '000)

Customers

Current deposits - non remunerative 46,750,172       41,466,373      

Current deposits - remunerative 1,677,132         1,210,897        

Savings deposits 27,224,891       23,935,223      

Term deposits 28,540,322       34,422,882      

Others 3,482,176         1,511,973        

107,674,693     102,547,348    

Financial Institutions 

Current deposits - non remunerative 451,966            114,330           

Current deposits - remunerative 112,806            32,474             

Savings deposits 1,652,012         333,656           

Term deposits 23,102,544       15,642,196      

25,319,328       16,122,656      

132,994,021     118,670,004    

(Rupees in '000)
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40.4 ISLAMIC BANKING BUSINESS UNAPPROPRIATED PROFIT

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

Opening balance 13,878,806     6,523,276       

Less: Impact of IFRS-9 - adoption (1,437,013)      -                  

Add: Islamic banking profit for the period 1,346,677       7,355,530       

Closing Balance 13,788,470     13,878,806     

40.5 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

-Guarantees 9,819,818       9,704,484       

-Commitments 13,297,397     16,754,842     

23,117,215     26,459,326     

40.6 CHARITY FUND

Opening balance 46,063            40,130            

Additions during the period

   - Received from customers on delayed payments 21,347            39,463            

   - Non Shariah Compliant Income -                  -                  

   - Profit on charity account 21                   32                   

   - Others 623                 690                 

21,991            40,185            

Payments / utilization during the period

   - Education -                  (5,468)             

   - Health -                  (24,661)           

   - Orphanage -                  (4,123)             

-                  (34,252)           

Closing balance 68,054            46,063            

(Un-audited) (Un-audited)

June 30, June 30, 

2024 2023

(Rupees in '000)

40.7 PROFIT / RETURN EARNED ON FINANCING,

INVESTMENTS AND PLACEMENTS

Profit earned on:

Financing 11,663,896     8,164,225       

Investments 4,697,260       2,964,521       

Placements 73,359            22,418            

16,434,515     11,151,164     

40.8 PROFIT ON DEPOSITS AND OTHER DUES EXPENSED

On:

Deposits and other accounts 6,756,696       4,939,067       

Due to financial institutions 344,604          277,811          

Due to head office 5,289,021       1,776,600       

Lease liability 137,236          110,532          

12,527,557     7,104,010       

41 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

-sd- -sd- -sd- -sd-

Chief Financial Officer / A. President & CE Director Director Chairman

(Rupees in '000)

These unconsolidated condensed interim financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on August

29, 2024.
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CONDENSED INTERIM

CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED

JUNE 30, 2024

(UN-AUDITED)



ASKARI BANK LIMITED

Consolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2024

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31, 

2024 2023

Note (Rupees in '000)

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks 6 119,301,787       160,087,467       

Balances with other banks 7 13,141,612         14,761,177         

Lendings to financial institutions 8 86,184,640         -                      

Investments 9 1,370,213,157    1,182,497,658    

Advances 10 717,285,590       633,046,149       

Property and equipment 11 19,943,181         18,707,443         

Right-of-use assets 12 9,576,179           8,312,812           

Intangible assets 13 1,954,088           1,860,747           

Assets held for sale 14 1,750,000           1,750,000           

Deferred tax assets 15 10,201,743         8,065,412           

Other assets 16 120,562,394       96,684,170         

Total Assets 2,470,114,371    2,125,773,035    

LIABILITIES

Bills payable 17 13,561,049         12,394,336         

Borrowings 18 862,532,195       643,362,665       

Deposits and other accounts 19 1,412,428,529    1,292,794,706    

Lease liabilities 20 11,351,842         9,699,474           

Subordinated debts 21 12,000,000         12,000,000         

Deferred tax liabilities -                      -                      

Other liabilities 22 57,495,826         57,826,193         

Total Liabilities 2,369,369,441    2,028,077,374    

NET ASSETS 100,744,930       97,695,661         

REPRESENTED BY

Share capital 14,492,992         14,492,992         

Reserves 75,409,689         57,855,752         

Surplus on revaluation of assets - net of tax 23 7,771,927           4,458,455           

Unappropriated profit 2,678,041           20,511,764         

Non-controlling interest 392,281              376,698              

100,744,930       97,695,661         

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24

-sd- -sd- -sd- -sd-

Chief Financial Officer / A. President & CE Director Director Chairman

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.
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ASKARI BANK LIMITED

Consolidated Condensed Interim Profit and Loss Account (Un-audited)

For the half year ended June 30, 2024

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

2024 2023 2024 2023

Note

Mark-up / return / interest earned 26 104,972,098     70,864,396       205,413,489     128,011,880     

Mark-up / return / interest expensed 27 92,959,196       57,979,011       180,536,611     103,190,618     

Net mark-up / interest income 12,012,902       12,885,385       24,876,878       24,821,262       

Non mark-up / interest income

Fee and commission income 28 1,941,796         1,718,135         3,673,560         3,393,147         

Dividend income 296,974            175,267            504,580            360,789            

Foreign exchange income 962,818            1,503,436         2,414,466         2,783,441         

Income / (loss) from derivatives -                    -                    -                    -                    

Gain on securities 29 624,827            117,086            900,019            25,765              

Net gains / (loss) on derecognition of financial assets 

measured at amortised cost -                    -                    -                    -                    

Other income 30 131,003            108,452            227,514            199,804            

Total non-markup / interest income 3,957,418         3,622,376         7,720,139         6,762,946         

Total income 15,970,320       16,507,761       32,597,017       31,584,208       

Non mark-up / interest expenses

Operating expenses 31 8,482,731         7,042,106         16,461,130       13,599,088       

Workers' Welfare Fund 135,000            119,679            270,000            237,899            

Other charges 32 8,894                16,813              9,272                124,165            

Total non-markup / interest expenses 8,626,625         7,178,598         16,740,402       13,961,152       

Profit before credit loss allowance / provisions 7,343,695         9,329,163         15,856,615       17,623,056       

Credit loss allowance and write offs - net 33 (1,625,964)       675,085            (452,291)           617,276            

Extraordinary / unusual items -                    -                    -                    -                    

Profit before taxation 8,969,659         8,654,078         16,308,906       17,005,780       

Taxation 34 4,548,028         4,519,956         8,172,217         8,168,237         

Profit after taxation 4,421,631         4,134,122         8,136,689         8,837,543         

Profit attributable to 

Non-controlling interest 19,148              -                    43,807              -                    

Equity holders of the Bank 4,402,483         4,134,122         8,092,882         8,837,543         

4,421,631         4,134,122         8,136,689         8,837,543         

Rupees Rupees

Basic earnings per share 35 3.05                  2.85                  5.61                  6.10                  

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

-sd- -sd- -sd- -sd-

Chief Financial Officer / A. President & CE Director Director Chairman

For the half year endedFor the quarter ended

(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)
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ASKARI BANK LIMITED

Consolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Comprehensive Income (Un-audited)

For the half year ended June 30, 2024

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, 

2024 2023 2024 2023

Note

Profit after taxation 4,421,631          4,134,122          8,136,689          8,837,543          

Other comprehensive income

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss account in

subsequent periods:

Effect of translation of net investment in Wholesale Bank Branch 6,984                 36,380               (61,772)              907,083             

Movement in surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of debt investments - net of tax 23 1,878,620          481,043             1,108,859          (6,545,919)         

Movement in surplus on revaluation of investments - net of tax -                     84,938               -                     12,045               

1,885,604          602,361             1,047,087          (5,626,791)         

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in

subsequent periods:

Movement in surplus on revaluation of equity investments through FVOCI - net of tax 23 956,364             -                     627,089             -                     

Remeasurement gain on defined benefit plan 367,245             287,833             367,245             287,833             

1,323,609          287,833             994,334             287,833             

Total comprehensive income 7,630,844          5,024,316          10,178,110        3,498,585          

Total comprehensive income attributable to

Non-controlling interest 19,148               -                     43,807               -                     

Equity holders of the Bank 7,611,696          5,024,316          10,134,303        3,498,585          

7,630,844          5,024,316          10,178,110        3,498,585          

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

-sd- -sd- -sd- -sd-

Chief Financial Officer / A. President & CE Director Director Chairman

For the half year endedFor the quarter ended

(Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)
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ASKARI BANK LIMITED

Consolidated Condensed Interim Statement of Changes in Equity (Un-audited)

For the half year ended June 30, 2024

Exchange Share Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of

Share translation premium Merger Statutory General Fixed / Non Un-appropriated Non-controlling

capital reserve account reserve reserve reserve Investments banking assets  profit / (loss) interest Total

Balance as at January 1, 2023 (Audited) 12,602,602         1,192,942        234,669           -                  15,605,063         26,340,921          (7,549,155)          11,501,511         13,403,870          -                      73,332,423           

Total comprehensive income for the half year ended June 30, 2023

Net profit for the half year ended June 30, 2023 -                     -                  -                  -                  -                     -                      -                      -                      8,837,543            -                      8,837,543             

Other comprehensive income related to equity -                     907,083           -                  -                  -                     -                      (6,533,874)          -                      287,833               -                      (5,338,958)            

-                     907,083           -                  -                  -                     -                      (6,533,874)          -                      9,125,376            -                      3,498,585             

Transfer to Statutory reserve -                     -                  -                  -                  883,754             -                      -                      -                      (883,754)              -                      -                       

Transfer to General reserve -                     -                  -                  -                  -                     13,381,442          -                      -                      (13,381,442)         -                      -                       

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity

Bonus shares issued 1,890,390           -                  (234,669)          -                  -                     (1,655,721)          -                      -                      -                      -                       

Balance as at June 30, 2023 (Un-audited) 14,492,992         2,100,025        -                  -                  16,488,817         38,066,642          (14,083,029)        11,501,511         8,264,050            -                      76,831,008           

Total comprehensive income for the six months ended December 31, 2023

Net profit for the six months ended December 31, 2023 -                     -                  -                  -                     -                      -                      -                      12,651,049          51,817                12,702,866           

Other comprehensive income related to equity -                     (187,799)          -                  -                     -                      7,715,799           126,715              53,836                 3,539                  7,712,090             

-                     (187,799)          -                  -                  -                     -                      7,715,799           126,715              12,704,885          55,356                20,414,956           

Transfer to Statutory reserve -                     -                  -                  -                  1,259,712           -                      -                      -                      (1,259,712)           -                      -                       

Transfer to General reserve -                     -                  -                  -                  -                     -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                       

Transfer from surplus on revaluation of assets to unappropriated profit - net of tax -                     -                  -                  -                     -                      -                      (802,541)             802,541               -                      -                       

Acquisition of subsidiary -                     -                  -                  128,355           -                     -                      -                      -                      -                      321,342              449,697                

Balance as at December 31, 2023 (Audited) 14,492,992         1,912,226        -                  128,355           17,748,529         38,066,642          (6,367,230)          10,825,685         20,511,764          376,698              97,695,661           

Effect of reclassification on adoption of IFRS 9 (net of tax) -                     -                  -                  -                     -                      1,766,774           -                      416,924               -                      2,183,698             

Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 - ECL (net of tax) -                     -                  -                  -                     -                      -                      -                      (5,661,067)           -                      (5,661,067)            

Balance as at December 31, 2023 - restated 14,492,992         1,912,226        -                  128,355           17,748,529         38,066,642          (4,600,456)          10,825,685         15,267,621          376,698              94,218,292           

Total comprehensive income for the half year ended June 30, 2024

Net profit for the half year ended June 30, 2024 -                     -                  -                  -                  -                     -                      -                      -                      8,092,882            43,807                8,136,689             

Other comprehensive income related to equity -                     (61,772)            -                  -                  -                     -                      1,735,948           -                      367,245               -                      2,041,421             

-                     (61,772)            -                  -                  -                     -                      1,735,948           -                      8,460,127            43,807                10,178,110           

Transfer to Statutory reserve -                     -                  -                  -                  807,145             -                      -                      -                      (807,145)              -                      -                       

Transfer to General reserve -                     -                  -                  -                  -                     16,808,564          -                      (16,808,564)         -                      p -                       

Gain on disposal of equity securities measured at FVOCI - net of tax -                     -                  -                  -                  -                     -                      (189,250)             -                      189,250               -                      -                       

Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity

Final dividend of 2023 -                     -                  -                  -                  -                     -                      -                      -                      (3,623,248)           (28,224)               (3,651,472)            

Balance as at June 30, 2024 (Un-audited) 14,492,992         1,850,454        -                  128,355           18,555,674         54,875,206          (3,053,758)          10,825,685         2,678,041            392,281              100,744,930         

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

-sd- -sd- -sd- -sd-

Chief Financial Officer / A. President & CE Director Director Chairman

(Rupees in '000)
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ASKARI BANK LIMITED

Consolidated Condensed Interim Cash Flow Statement (Un-audited)

For the half year ended June 30, 2024

June 30, June 30, 

2024 2023

Note (Rupees in '000)

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before taxation 16,308,906         17,005,780         

Less: dividend income (504,580)            (360,789)            

15,804,326         16,644,991         

Adjustments:

Depreciation 638,341             472,859             

Amortization 110,834             82,922               

Depreciation on ROU assets 1,079,163          811,224             

Markup expense on lease liability 697,985             495,230             

Termination of lease contracts under IFRS - 16 Leases (5,524)                (9,900)                

Fair value loss on recognition of financial asset at fair value 259,574             -                     

Charge for defined benefit plan 333,264             256,877             

Credit loss allowance and write offs - net 33 (398,979)            663,472             

Unrealised gain on securities measured at FVTPL (581,574)            (9,476)                

Gain on sale of property and equipment (6,702)                (4,019)                

2,126,382          2,759,189          

17,930,708         19,404,180         

(Increase) / decrease in operating assets

Lendings to financial institutions (86,184,576)       321,795             

Securities classified as FVPL / HFT 328,456             274,747             

Advances (98,336,226)       (39,474,073)       

Other assets (excluding advance taxation) (15,621,758)       (17,149,438)       

(199,814,104)     (56,026,969)       

Increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities

Bills payable 1,166,713          16,083,723         

Borrowings from financial institutions 219,169,530       306,923,780       

Deposits 119,633,823       127,052,463       

Other liabilities (1,733,929)         9,884,853          

338,236,137       459,944,819       

Net cash generated from operations 156,352,741       423,322,030       

Payment made to defined benefit plan (127,350)            (221,353)            

Income tax paid (12,332,383)       (6,205,499)         

Net cash flow from operating activities 143,893,008       416,895,178       

Cash flow from investing activities

Net investments in securities measured at FVOCI / AFS (188,134,410)     (349,509,447)     

Net investments in securities measured at amortised cost 8,393,015          (1,635,665)         

Dividend received 501,624             333,498             

Investments in property and equipment (1,876,726)         (580,787)            

Investments in intangible assets (199,305)            (225,782)            

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 16,299               6,869                 

Effect of translation of net investment in Wholesale Bank Branch (61,772)              907,083             

Net cash used in investing activities (181,361,275)     (350,704,231)     

Cash flow from financing activities

Payments under IFRS 16 (1,325,171)         (975,538)            

Dividend paid (3,611,807)         (1,170)                

Net cash used in financing activities (4,936,978)         (976,708)            

(Decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (42,405,245)       65,214,239         

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period 174,848,644       80,627,190         

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 132,443,399       145,841,429       

The annexed notes 1 to 41 form an integral part of these consolidated condensed interim financial statements.

-sd- -sd- -sd- -sd-

Chief Financial Officer / A. President & CE Director Director Chairman

For the half year ended
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ASKARI BANK LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Condensed Interim Financial Statements (Un-audited)

For the half year ended June 30, 2024

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1.1

2.1.2

2.1.3

2.2 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

2.2.1

-

-

The Group consists of Askari Bank Limited, the holding company, Foundation Securities Limited, a

51% owned subsidiary and Askari Currency Exchange (Private) Limited, a 100% owned subsidiary.

Askari Bank Limited (the Bank) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 9, 1991 as a Public Limited

Company and is listed on the Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Bank is situated

at AWT Plaza, the Mall, Rawalpindi. The Bank is a scheduled commercial bank and is principally

engaged in the business of banking as defined in the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962. The

Fauji Consortium: comprising of Fauji Foundation (FF), Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited (FFCL) and

Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (FFBL) collectively owned 71.91 (2023: 71.91) percent shares of

the Bank as on June 30, 2024. The ultimate parent of the Bank is Fauji Foundation. The Bank has

660 branches (2023: 660 branches); 659 in Pakistan and Azad Jammu and Kashmir including 142

(2023: 137) Islamic Banking branches and 63 (2023: 63) sub–branches and a Wholesale Bank

Branch (WBB) in the Kingdom of Bahrain.

These consolidated condensed interim financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is

the Group's functional and presentation currency. The amounts are rounded off to the nearest

thousand.

These consolidated condensed interim financial statements have been prepared under the historical

cost convention except that certain classes of fixed assets and non-banking assets acquired in

satisfaction of claims are stated at revalued amounts and certain investments have been marked to

market and are carried at fair value. In addition, obligations in respect of staff retirement benefits are

carried at present value.

These consolidated condensed interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with

the approved accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The approved

accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 34, Interim Financial Reporting, issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

Foundation Securities (Private) Limited (FSL) was incorporated in Pakistan on January 18, 2005

under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 as a private limited company. The Group holds

51% Ordinary Shares of FSL. The principal activity includes equity and commodity brokerage, equity

research and corporate financial advisory services. The registered office of FSL is situated in

Karachi.

These consolidated financial statements have been presented in accordance with the requirements

of format prescribed by the State Bank of Pakistan.

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017; 

During the period ended June 30, 2024, the Bank has invested Rs. 700 million in its wholly owned

subsidiary Askari Currency Exchange (Private) Limited.
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-

-

2.2.2

2.2.3

3

3.1

4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

4.1 IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

-52-

These consolidated condensed interim financial statements have been presented in accordance with

the requirements of format prescribed by SBP vide BPRD Circular No. 2 dated February 09, 2023

and International Accounting Standard 34 'Interim Financial Reporting' and do not include all the

information and disclosures required in the audited annual consolidated financial statements, and

should be read in conjunction with the audited annual consolidated financial statements of the Group

for the financial year ended December 31, 2023.

Provisions of and directives issued under the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and the

Companies Act, 2017; and 

Directives issued by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and the Securities and Exchange

Commission of Pakistan (SECP). 

Whenever the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017

or the directives issued by the SBP and the SECP differ with the requirements of IFRS or IFAS the

requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962, the Companies Act, 2017 and the said

directives, shall prevail.

The State Bank of Pakistan has deferred the applicability of IFAS 3 'Profit and Loss Sharing on

Deposits', vide BPRD Circular No.04 dated February 25, 2015 and International Accounting

Standard 40, Investment Property , vide BSD Circular Letter no. 10 dated August 26, 2002, for

banking companies till further instructions. Further, the SECP, through S.R.O 411(1)/2008 dated

April 28, 2008, has deferred the applicability of IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, to banks.

Accordingly, the requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of

these consolidated condensed interim financial statements. 

During the period, as directed by the SBP vide its BPRD Circular No. 07 of 2023 dated April 13,

2023, IFRS 9: ‘Financial Instruments' (the Standard) became applicable to the Group.  

BPRD Circular No. 03 of 2022 issued by SBP provides detailed instructions on implementation of

IFRS 9 (the Application Instructions) for ensuring smooth and consistent implementation of the

standard across banks. The SBP vide its BPRD Circular Letter No. 16 of 2024 have made

amendments and extend the timelines of IFRS 9 application instructions. 

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards

that are effective in the current period

During the year, the Bank has adopted IFRS 9 as applicable in Pakistan with effect from 01 January

2024 (refer note 4.1 for details). There are certain other amendments to accounting and reporting

standards that are mandatory for the Group's accounting periods beginning on or after January 1,

2024. Except for IFRS 9, these are either considered not to be relevant or do not have any

significant effect on the Group's operations and are therefore not detailed in these consolidated

condensed interim financial statements.

Standards, interpretations of and amendments to published approved accounting standards

that are not yet effective

There are various amendments to accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan that 

are not yet effective in the current period. These are not likely to have material effect on the Group's 

financial statements.

The material accounting policies applied in preparation of these condensed interim consolidated

financial statements are consistent with those as applied in the preparation of annual consolidated

financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023, except for the following:



4.1.1 Impact on the condensed interim consolidated statement of financial position:

The effect of this change in accounting policy on the financial assets and financial liabilities is as follows:

Financial Asset / Liabilities

Balances as of 

December 31, 

2023 (Audited)

Remeasurements / 

reclassifications

Recognition of 

expected credit 

loss (ECL) 

Balances as of 

January 01, 

2024

ASSETS

Cash and balances with treasury banks 160,087,394         -                          -                         160,087,394       

Balances with other banks 13,789,031           -                          (172)                       13,788,859         

Investments

- Classified as available for sale 1,124,989,158      (1,124,989,158)       -                         -                      

- Classified as fair value through other

comprehensive income -                        1,105,542,060        (166,857)                1,105,375,203    

- Classified as held to maturity 56,798,998           (56,798,998)            -                         -                      

- Classified as amortised cost -                        74,879,606             -                         74,879,606         

- Classified as held for trading 552,832                (552,832)                 -                         -                      

- Classified as fair value through 

profit or loss -                        6,201,322               -                         6,201,322           

1,182,340,988      4,282,000               (166,857)                1,186,456,131    

Advances

 Gross amount 661,308,049         -                          -                         661,308,049       

- Provision (28,175,222)          -                          (10,322,295)           (38,497,517)        

633,132,827         -                          (10,322,295)           622,810,532       

Other assets - financial assets 90,069,257           -                          (383,971)                89,685,286         

LIABILITIES

Bills payable 12,394,336           -                          -                         12,394,336         

Borrowings 643,362,665         -                          -                         643,362,665       

Deposits and other accounts 1,293,145,575      -                          -                         1,293,145,575    

Subordinated debt 12,000,000           -                          -                         12,000,000         

Other liabilities - financial liabilities 45,249,204           -                          226,837                 45,476,041         

2,026,883,138      -                          226,837                 2,027,109,975    

The standard addresses recognition, classification, measurement and derecognition of financial assets and financial

liabilities. The standard has also introduced a new impairment model for financial assets which requires recognition of

impairment charge based on ‘expected credit losses' (ECL) approach rather than ‘incurred credit losses' approach as

previously followed. The ECL has impact on all the assets of the Group which are exposed to credit risk. 

The Group has adopted IFRS 9 in accordance  with the Application Instructions from January 1, 2024, using the modified

retrospective approach and has not restated comparatives for the 2023 reporting period and the differences in carrying

amount of financial assets and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised in retained earnings

and reserves as at 1 January 2024, as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in the Standard. Accordingly, the

information presented for 2023 does not reflect the requirements of IFRS 9 and therefore is not comparable to the

information presented for 2024 under IFRS 9. The accounting policies applicable to the 2023 presented information is

consistent with the policies mentioned in 31 December 2023 annual financial statements.

SBP vide its BPRD Circular Letter No. 16 of 2024 have made certain amendments and extended timelines of application

instructions for certain areas where the banking industry has sought more time. These amendments and relaxations

include use modification accounting for financial assets and liabilities as per IFRS 9 standard and recording and treatment

of staff loan and advances at reduced rates to given effect from 1 October 2024. Further, the banks have been asked to

use existing practices of recordings of interest/markup income using effective interest rate and ensure full recognition from

1 October 2024, this in turn also effects the reduced rate loans and modified assets accounting. Moreover, SBP have

allowed an extension to Banks up to December 31, 2024 for developing the requisite models for calculating EAD for

revolving products beyond the contractual date. In addition the banks have also been allowed to continue the existing

practice of valuing unquoted equity investment at their cost or breakup value, whichever is lower, till 31 December 2024

and perform fair valuation of these securities afterwards.

(Rupees in '000)
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Measurement 

Category – before 

adoption of IFRS 9

Measurement 

Category - after 

adoption of IFRS 9

Carrying amount at 

December 31, 2023 – 

before adoption of 

IFRS 9

Carrying amount 

at January 01, 

2024 - after 

adoption of IFRS 9

Loans and 

receivables

Amortised cost 160,087,394              160,087,394          

Loans and 

receivables

Amortised cost 13,789,031                13,788,859            

Held for trading Fair value through 

profit or loss

552,832                     552,832                 

Available for sale Fair value through 

profit or loss

5,648,490                  5,648,490              

Available for sale Fair value through 

other comprehensive 

income

1,105,542,060           1,105,375,203       

Available for sale Amortised cost 13,798,608                18,080,608            

Held to maturity Amortised cost 56,798,998                56,798,998            

Loans and 

receivables

Amortised cost 633,132,827              622,810,532          

Loans and 

receivables

Amortised cost 90,069,257                89,685,286            

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost 12,394,336                12,394,336            

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost 643,362,665              643,362,665          

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost 1,293,145,575           1,293,145,575       

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost 12,000,000                12,000,000            

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost 45,249,204                45,476,041            

4.1.2 Impact on reserve of deficit on revaluation of investments:

Impact of 

adopting IFRS 9 

at January 1, 

2024
Rupees in '000

Closing balances as at December 31, 2023 (6,367,323)          

Reclassification of investment securities (debt) from available-for-sale to amortised cost 4,282,000           

Reclassification of net surplus on investment securities (debt and equity) from 

available-for-sale to FVTPL (220,594)             

Reclassification of provision for diminution in value of investment securities 

(equity) from available-for-sale to FVOCI (597,143)             

Related tax (1,697,489)          

1,766,774           

Opening balance under IFRS 9 as at January 1, 2024 (4,600,549)          

4.1.3 Impact on Retained Earnings

Closing balances as at December 31, 2023 20,431,812         

Reclassification under IFRS 9 (net of tax) 416,924              

Recognition of expected credit losses under IFRS 9 (11,100,132)        

Related tax 5,439,065           

(5,661,067)          

Opening balance under IFRS 9 as at January 1, 2024 15,187,669         
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The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement categories under the regulation

established by the regulator / SBP and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Group’s

financial assets / liability as at 1 January 2024:

Financial Asset / Liabilities 

Rupees in '000

Borrowings

Deposits and other accounts

Subordinated debt

Other liabilities

Cash and balances with treasury 

banks

Balances with other banks

Investments

Advances

Other assets 

Bills payable



4.1.4 Impact on regulatory capital

The impact of adoption of IFRS 9 on the capital ratios of the Group are as follows:

As per

previous

Reporting

(31 December 

2023)

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio 15.11% 14.15%

Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 16.08% 15.12%

Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 18.35% 17.52%

4.1.5 Classification and measurement 

Recognition / derecognition and initial measurement

Classification

Financial Assets

-

-

-

In order to mitigate the impact of ECL models on capital, SBP has determined that it may be

appropriate for the banks to introduce a transitional arrangement for the impact on regulatory capital

from the application of ECL accounting. Annexure B of the 'Application Instructions' issued by SBP

has detailed the transitional arrangement.

The transitional arrangement applies only to provisions for stage 1 and stage 2 financial assets. The

transitional arrangement must adjust CET1 capital. Where there is a reduction in CET1 capital due

to new provisions, net of tax effect, upon adoption of an ECL accounting model, the decline in CET1

capital (the “transitional adjustment amount”) must be partially included (i.e., added back) to CET1

capital over the “transition period” of five years.

Moreover, SBP has allowed to adjust the amount of Stage 1 and Stage 2 provisions in Tier 2 Capital

that have not been added back to CET 1 and vice versa as per Annexure-A of BPRD Circular no 16

of 2024.

At 1 January 

2024 after 

adoption of 

IFRS 9

Under the new standard, classification and measurement of financial assets depends on how these

are managed based on business model and their contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial

assets that do not meet the Solely Payment of Principal and Interest (SPPI) criteria are required to

be measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) regardless of the business model in which

they are held. 

Trade receivable and debt securities issued are initially recorded when they are originated. All other

financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or

financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs

that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant

financing component is initially measured at transaction price.

The policy for derecognition of financial asset and liabilities are consistent with the annual

consolidated financials statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2023.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost, FVOCI or

FVTPL.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect

contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

SPPI.

A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not

designated as at FVTPL:

the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting

contractual cashflows and selling financial assets; and
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Financial Liabilities

4.1.6 Business model assessment

4.1.7

4.1.8 Subsequent measurement

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

SPPI.

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains

and losses, including any markup or dividend income, are

recognised in profit or loss.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably

elect to present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-

investment basis.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group

changes its business models for managing financial assets, in which cases all affected financial

assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following changes in the business

model.

IFRS 9 allows entities to irrevocably designate, at initial recognition, a financial asset as measured

at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces any 'accounting mismatch' that would

otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognizing gains and losses on them on

different basis. SBP instructions state that banks may apply the fair value option if, in addition to the

IFRS 9 criterion, (a) it is consistent with a documented risk management strategy, and (b) fair values 

are reliable at inception and throughout life of the instrument. Nonetheless, banks should avoid this

option for financial instruments that are categorized as Level 3 in terms of the IFRS 13 hierarchy.

Financial liabilities are either classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), when they are

held for trading purposes, or at amortised cost. Financial liabilities classified as FVTPL are

measured at fair value and all the fair value changes are recognized in profit and loss account.

Financial liabilities classified at amortised cost are initially recorded at their fair value and

subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method. Markup expense and foreign

exchange gain and losses are recognised in profit and loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is

also recognised in profit and loss.

A financial asset is classified as either Held to collect, Held to collect and sale and Others based on

Business model assessment. The Group makes an assessment of the objective of a business

model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the

business is managed, and information is provided to management. The assessment requires

judgement based on facts and circumstances on the date of assessment.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair

value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows

nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.

The assessment considers the policies and objectives for the portfolio of financial assets, risk

affecting, performance evaluation, historical sales information etc. 

Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

(SPPI)

The Group assesses whether the contractual cash flows of a financial asset meet the Solely

Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) criterion by examining the contractual terms. This

includes checking for terms that could alter the amount and timings of cash flows, such as

contingent events, leverage, or prepayment features, etc. 

A prepayment feature aligns with SPPI if it mainly represents unpaid principal and profit, including

reasonable compensation for early termination. 

For fixed-rate financings with periodic profit rate resets, the Group considers these SPPl-compliant

as the revised rates reflect time value, credit risk, and other associated risks. 

Financial assets at amortised 

cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by

impairment losses. Markup, foreign exchange gains and losses and 

impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
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4.1.9 Modification

Financial assets

Financial liabilities

4.1.10 Impairment

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value and is

assessed for impairment under the new ECL model. Markup

income is calculated using the effective interest method and

includes amortization of premiums and accretion of discount,

foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised

in income statement. Other net gains and losses are recognised in

OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are

reclassified to income statement.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends

are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend

clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment,

in which case they are adjusted from the carrying value of

investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and

are never reclassified to income statement.

The banks are allowed to continue measuring unquoted equity securities at the lower of cost or

break-up value up to December 31, 2024. However, Group shall be required to measure unquoted

equity securities at fair value, as required in the IFRS 9 application instructions, with effect from

January 1, 2025.

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of loans to its

customers. If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from

the original financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is

derecognized and a new financial asset is recognised at fair value plus any eligible transaction

costs.

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the

modification is usually to maximise recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to originate

a new asset with substantially different terms. If the Group plans to modify a financial asset in a way

that would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion of the asset

should be written off before the modification takes place. This approach impacts the result of the

quantitative evaluation and means that the derecognition criteria are not usually met in such cases.

If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortised cost or FVOCI does not result in

derecognition of the financial asset, then the Group first recalculates the gross carrying amount of

the financial asset using the original effective interest rate of the asset and recognized the resulting

adjustment as a modification gain or loss in profit or loss. Any costs or fees incurred, and fees

received as part of the modification adjust the gross carrying amount of the modified financial asset

and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified financial asset.

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the

modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the

modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the

financial liability recognized and consideration paid is recognized in profit or loss. Consideration

paid includes non-financial assets transferred, if any, and the assumption of liabilities, including the

new modified financial liability.

If the modification of a financial liability is not accounted for as derecognition, then the amortised

cost of the liability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effective

interest rate and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. For floating-rate financial

liabilities, the original effective interest rate used to calculate the modification gain or loss is

adjusted to reflect current market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred

are recognized as an adjustment to the carrying amount of the liability and amortised over the

remaining term of the modified financial liability by re-computing the effective interest rate on the

instrument.

The impairment requirements apply to financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVOCI

(other than equity instruments), lease receivables, and certain loan commitments and financial

guarantee contracts. At initial recognition, an impairment allowance (or provision in the case of

commitments and guarantees) is required for expected credit losses (‘ECL’) resulting from default

events that are possible within the next 12 months (’12-month ECL’). In the event of a significant

increase in credit risk, a provision is required for ECL resulting from all possible default events over

the expected life of the financial instrument (‘lifetime ECL’).
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4.1.11 Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

A financial asset is transitioned to a backward stage in line with SBP instructions. 

4.1.12 Governance, ownership and responsibilities

4.2 Revised format of condensed interim financial statements

The adoption of revised format has resulted in following significant changes:

-

-
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LGD: An estimate of the loss incurred on a facility upon default by a customer. LGD is

calculated as the difference between contractual cash flows due and those that the Group

expects to receive, including from the liquidation of any form of collateral. It is expressed as a

percentage of the exposure outstanding on the date of classification of an obligor.

Financial assets where 12-month ECL is recognized are in 'Stage 1'; financial assets that are

considered to have experienced a significant increase in credit risk are in 'Stage 2'; and financial

assets for which there is objective evidence of impairment, so are considered to be in default or

otherwise credit impaired, are in 'Stage 3'. Under the SBP's instructions, the Group is not required to

compute ECL on Government Securities and on Government guaranteed credit exposure in local

currency. 

Based on the requirements of IFRS 9 and SBP's IFRS 9 application instructions, the Group has

performed an ECL assessment considering the following key elements: 

PD: The probability that a counterparty will default over the next 12 months from the reporting

date (12-month ECL, Stage1) or over the lifetime of the product (lifetime ECL, Stage 2).

EAD: The expected balance sheet exposure at the time of default, incorporating expectations

on drawdowns, amortization, pre-payments and forward-looking information where relevant.

Lease liabilities (note 20) amounting to Rs 11,351,842 thousand (December 31, 2023: Rs

9,699,474 thousand) which were previously shown as part of other liabilities (note 22) are

now shown separately on the consolidated statement of financial position.

A SICR is assessed in the context of an increase in the risk of a default occurring over the life of the

financial instrument when compared to that expected at the time of initial recognition. It is not

assessed in the context of an increase in the ECL. The Group used several qualitative and

quantitative measures in assessing SICR. Quantitative measures relate to deterioration of Obligor

Risk Ratings (ORR) or where principal and / or profit payments are 60 days or more past due.

Qualitative factors include unavailability of financial information and pending litigations.

The Group has adopted a governance framework requiring multiple functions to effectively work

together to ensure input from all business lines. The Risk Department defines the staging criteria for

the new impairment model and take ownership of all models, methodologies and the ECL

calculation approach. Additionally, the Risk department also take the ownership of the impact of

ECL on bank's capital. 

The Group's Finance Division performs ECL calculation. As a result, the department then assess

the financial impact, meet the financial reporting requirements and further monitor the impact on the

financial ratios. 

As per the Group's policy, the Group's Internal Audit function carries out periodic review of IFRS 9

methodology and impacts calculated by the Management.

The SBP through its BPRD Circular No. 02 dated February 9, 2023, and BPRD Circular Letter No.

07 of 2023 dated April 13, 2023, has amended the format of quarterly and half yearly financial

statements of banks. All banks are directed to prepare their quarterly and half yearly financial

statements on the revised format effective from accounting year starting from January 1, 2024.

Accordingly, the Group has prepared these condensed interim consolidated financial statements on

the new format prescribed by the SBP.

Right-of-use-assets (note 12) amounting to Rs 9,576,179 thousand (December 31, 2023: Rs

8,312,812 thousand) which were previously shown as part of fixed assets are now shown

separately on the consolidated statement of financial position.



5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

6 CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS Rupees in '000

In hand:

   Local currency 31,198,563     27,760,857     

   Foreign currencies 5,718,808       4,318,238       

36,917,371     32,079,095     

With the State Bank of Pakistan in:

   Local currency current accounts 56,474,614     104,626,342   

   Foreign currency current account 6,929,175       6,885,755       

   Foreign currency deposit account 13,106,172     12,873,026     

76,509,961     124,385,123   

With National Bank of Pakistan in:

   Local currency current accounts 5,841,254       3,573,496       

Prize Bonds 33,201            49,753            

Less: Credit loss allowance held against cash and balances with other banks -                 -                 

Cash and balances with treasury banks - net of credit loss allowance 119,301,787   160,087,467   

7 BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS

In Pakistan

   In current accounts 251,750          191,224          

   In deposit accounts 797,046          783,724          

1,048,796       974,948          

Outside Pakistan

   In current accounts 1,190,480       1,557,101       

   In deposit accounts - note 7.1 10,902,505     12,229,132     

12,092,985     13,786,233     

Less: Credit loss allowance held against balances with other banks (169)               (4)                   

Balances with other banks - net of credit loss allowance 13,141,612     14,761,177     

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

8 LENDINGS TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS 

Repurchase agreement lendings (reverse repo) 66,199,437     -                 

Call money lendings 20,000,000     -                 

Purchase under resale arrangement of equity securities 74,303            89,164            

86,273,740     89,164            

Less: Credit loss allowance / provision held against lending 

to financial institutions (89,100)          (89,164)          

Lendings to financial institutions - net of credit loss allowance / provision 86,184,640     -                 

Credit Loss

Lending Allowance Held Lending Provision held

8.1 Particulars of credit loss allowance

      / provision

Domestic

Performing Stage 1 86,199,437     14,798            -                 -                 

Non-performing

Loss Stage 3 74,303            74,302            89,164            89,164            

86,273,740     89,100            89,164            89,164            
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The financial risk management objectives and policies adopted by the Group are consistent with those disclosed in

the audited annual consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023.

Rupees in '000

December 31, 2023June 30, 2024

Rupees in '000



9 INVESTMENTS

Cost / Credit Loss Surplus / Carrying Cost / Surplus / Carrying 

amortised cost allowance (deficit) value amortised cost (deficit) value

9.1 Investments by type:

FVTPL / (2023: Held for trading)

Fully paid ordinary shares 357,060                -                       2,070                    359,130                544,494                -                       22,049                  566,543                

Units of mutual funds 1,820,729             -                       656,954                2,477,683             -                       -                       -                       -                       

Non Government Debt Securities 3,622,900             -                       (3,734)                  3,619,166             -                       -                       -                       -                       

5,800,689             -                       655,290                6,455,979             544,494                -                       22,049                  566,543                

FVOCI / (2023: Available for sale)

Federal Government Securities 1,288,033,016      (564,518)              (8,132,042)           1,279,336,456      1,117,640,852      (524,796)              (14,605,232)         1,102,510,824      

Shares 4,811,884             (5,680)                  2,147,114             6,953,318             4,752,010             (597,143)              1,885,567             6,040,434             

Units of mutual funds -                       -                       -                       -                       1,913,994             (168,124)              259,059                2,004,929             

Fully paid preference shares 27,314                  (2,235)                  (1,500)                  23,579                  27,314                  (11,914)                12,750                  28,150                  

Non Government Debt Securities 11,767,754           (1,303,453)           (1,332)                  10,462,969           15,836,647           (1,355,068)           (32,425)                14,449,154           

1,304,639,968      (1,875,886)           (5,987,760)           1,296,776,322      1,140,170,817      (2,657,045)           (12,480,281)         1,125,033,491      

Amortised cost / (2023: Held to maturity)

Federal Government Securities 67,170,859           (190,003)              -                       66,980,856           57,483,266           (585,642)              -                       56,897,624           

Non Government Debt Securities 110,000                (110,000)              -                       -                       110,000                (110,000)              -                       -                       

67,280,859           (300,003)              -                       66,980,856           57,593,266           (695,642)              -                       56,897,624           

Total investments 1,377,721,515      (2,175,889)           (5,332,470)           1,370,213,157      1,198,308,577      (3,352,687)           (12,458,232)         1,182,497,658      

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

9.1.1 Investments given as collateral

The market value of investment given as collateral is as follows

Market Treasury Bills 20,455,390           13,586,080           

Pakistan Investment Bonds 775,203,500         570,673,900         

Shares 158,914                141,491                

795,817,804         584,401,471         
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(Rupees in '000)

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited) December 31, 2023 (Audited)

(Rupees in '000)

 Provision for 

diminution in value 

of investment 



9.3 Credit loss allowance / provision for diminution in value of investments

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

9.3.1 Opening balance 3,352,687         3,512,177      

Impact of reclassification on adoption of IFRS 9 (847,767)           -                 

Impact of ECL recognized on adoption of IFRS 9 166,857            -                 

2,671,777         3,512,177      

Exchange adjustments (1,093)               274,611         

Charge / (reversals)

Charge for the period / year -                    180,392         

Reversal for the period / year (494,795)           (328,207)        

Reversal on disposals -                    (286,286)        

(494,795)           (434,101)        

Closing balance 2,175,889         3,352,687      

9.3.2 Particulars of credit loss allowance / provision against debt securities

Amount 

Outstanding 

(cost)

Credit loss 

allowance 

Held

Amount 

Outstanding 

(cost)

Provision 

held

Category of classification

Domestic

Performing       - Stage 1 1,355,606,015   129,472         -                    -                 

Non-performing - Stage 3

   Loss 1,383,823          1,383,823      1,577,096         1,476,982      

1,356,989,838   1,513,295      1,577,096         1,476,982      

Overseas

Performing       - Stage 1 10,020,479        656,914         20,287,925       1,110,438      

1,367,010,317   2,170,209      21,865,021       2,587,420      

9.4
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(Rupees in '000)

The market value of securities classified as amortised cost / held to maturity as at June 30, 2024 is Rs.

58,996,690  thousand (2023: Rs. 50,529,523 thousand).

(Rupees in '000)

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited) December 31, 2023 (Un-audited)



(Un-audited) (Audited) (Un-audited) (Audited) (Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31, June 30, December 31,
10 ADVANCES 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023

Loans, cash credits, running finances, etc. 562,666,627    498,619,419    27,744,488       25,198,876       590,422,018        523,818,295    
Islamic financing and related assets 136,647,536    114,772,652    4,355,830         2,781,125         140,992,463        117,553,777    

Bills discounted and purchased 20,608,553       18,765,713       2,343,084         1,083,586         22,951,637          19,849,299       

Advances - gross 719,922,716    632,157,784    34,443,402       29,063,587       754,366,118        661,221,371    

Credit loss allowance / provision 

against advances

  - Stage 1 (2,489,300)       -                    -                    -                    (2,489,300)           -                    

  - Stage 2 (2,167,883)       -                    -                    -                    (2,167,883)           -                    

  - Stage 3 -                    -                    (32,423,345)     -                    (32,423,345)         -                    

  - General -                    (2,538,527)       -                    -                    -                        (2,538,527)       

  - Specific -                    -                    -                    (25,636,695)     -                        (25,636,695)     

(4,657,183)       (2,538,527)       (32,423,345)     (25,636,695)     (37,080,528)         (28,175,222)     
Advances - net of credit loss .

allowance / (provision) 715,265,533    629,619,257    2,020,057         3,426,892         717,285,590        633,046,149    

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

10.1 Particulars of advances (Gross)

In local currency 715,263,649        622,718,911    

In foreign currencies 39,102,469          38,502,460       

754,366,118        661,221,371    

10.2

Category of classification (Stage 3) Non Performing Credit loss Non Performing 

Loans Allowance Loans Provision

Domestic

  Other Assets Especially Mentioned 276,723            252,870            133,619                1,423                

  Substandard 4,080,006         3,289,442         2,112,910            523,884            

  Doubtful 1,711,422         1,331,104         1,301,511            599,345            

  Loss 28,375,251       27,549,929       25,515,547          24,512,043       

34,443,402       32,423,345       29,063,587          25,636,695       

10.3 Particulars of credit loss allowance  / provision against

 advances Stage 3 Stage 2 Stage 1 Total

Opening balance 25,636,695       -                    2,538,527            28,175,222       

Impact of ECL recognized on adoption of IFRS 9 5,782,432         3,987,283         552,578                10,322,293       

31,419,127       3,987,283         3,091,105            38,497,515       

Charge for the period 4,211,359         274,486            190,698                4,676,543         

Reversal for the period (3,207,141)       (2,093,886)       (792,503)              (6,093,530)       

1,004,218         (1,819,400)       (601,805)              (1,416,987)       

Closing balance 32,423,345       2,167,883         2,489,300            37,080,528       

Specific General

Total

Opening balance 29,297,528       1,010,000         815,586                31,123,114       

Exchange adjustments -                    22,369              -                        22,369              

Charge for the year 2,657,741         1,152,111         52,676                  3,862,528         

Reversal under IFRS 9 related to WBB -                    (86,544)             -                        (86,544)             

Reversal for the year (2,105,630)       (108,551)          (319,120)              (2,533,301)       

552,111            957,016            (266,444)              1,242,683         

Amounts written off (2,505,910)       -                    -                        (2,505,910)       

Amounts charged off (1,707,034)       -                    -                        (1,707,034)       

Closing balance 25,636,695       1,989,385         549,142                28,175,222       

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

10.4 Advances - particulars of credit loss allowance

Opening balance (including impact of ECL on adoption of IFRS 9) 3,091,105         3,987,283            31,419,127       

New Advances 159,367            34,502                  11,322              

Advances repaid (94,267)             (96,369)                (653,799)          

Transfer to stage 1 31,330              (86,660)                -                    

Transfer to stage 2 (116,774)          239,984                -                    

Transfer to stage 3 (3,521)               (356,016)              4,200,038         

Changes in risk parameters (577,940)          (1,554,841)           (2,553,343)       

Closing balance 2,489,300         2,167,883            32,423,345       
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June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)

December 31, 2023 (Audited)

(Rupees in '000)

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)

TotalNon Performing

Consumer 

financing - General

Performing

(Rupees in '000)

December 31, 2023 (Audited)June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

Advances include Rs.34,443,402 thousand (2023: Rs. 29,063,587 thousand) which have been placed under non-performing status as detailed below:



Loans Credit Loss Loans

Outstanding Allowance Held Outstanding Provision

10.5 Advances - category of classification

Domestic

Performing Stage 1 636,218,808  2,489,300       629,255,462  2,512,841       

Underperforming Stage 2 82,770,650    2,157,073       -                  -                  

Non-Performing Stage 3

Other assets specially mentioned 276,723          252,870          133,619          1,423              

  Substandard 4,080,006       3,289,442       2,112,910       523,884          

  Doubtful 1,711,422       1,331,104       1,301,511       599,345          

  Loss 28,375,251    27,549,929    25,515,547    24,512,043    

34,443,402    32,423,345    29,063,587    25,636,695    

Sub Total 753,432,860  37,069,718    658,319,049  28,149,536    

Overseas

Underperforming Stage 2 927,804          10,810            2,902,322       25,686            

Total 754,360,664  37,080,528    661,221,371  28,175,222    

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

11 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Capital work-in-progress - note 11.1 516,207          491,050          

Property and equipment 19,426,974    18,216,393    

19,943,181    18,707,443    

11.1 This represents advances to suppliers and contractors.

Period ended Period ended

June 30, June 30,

2024 2023

11.2 Additions to property and equipment

The following additions have been made to property and equipment during the period:

Capital work-in-progress 260,884          98,355            

Property and equipment

Buildings - leasehold -                  1,037              

Renovation of premises 396,366          165,657          

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 281,383          125,005          

Machine and equipment 722,465          191,419          

Computer equipment 410,386          112,476          

Vehicles 40,969            7,743              

1,851,569       603,337          

Total 2,112,453       701,692          

11.3 Disposal of property and equipment

The net book value of property and equipment disposed off during the period is as follows:

Renovation of premises 117                 -                  

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 4,982              2,193              

Machine and equipment 1,828              657                 

Computer equipment 360                 -                  

Vehicles 2,310              -                  

Total 9,597              2,850              

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

12 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Net carrying amount at January 1, 8,312,812       6,891,568       

Additions during the period / year 2,318,296       3,227,516       

Depreciation for the period / year (1,079,163)     (1,722,707)     

Deletions and other adjustments 24,234            (83,565)          

Net carrying amount at period / year end 9,576,179       8,312,812       

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Computer software 1,562,732       1,501,272       

Capital work in progress 391,356          359,475          

1,954,088       1,860,747       
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(Rupees in '000)

December 31, 2023 (Audited)

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

(Un-audited)

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)

(Rupees in '000)



Period ended Period ended

June 30, June 30,

2024 2023

13.1 Additions to intangible assets

The following additions have been made to intangible assets during 

the period:

Capital work-in-progress 97,518            179,625          

Directly purchased 101,787          92,809            

199,305          272,434          

14

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

15 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

(Taxable) / deductible temporary differences on

 - Accelerated tax depreciation (238,645)        (205,456)        

 - Deficit on revaluation of investments 2,934,002       6,115,338       

 - Credit loss allowance / provision against advances 7,511,389       2,160,533       

 - Others (5,003)            (5,003)            

10,201,743     8,065,412       

16 OTHER ASSETS

Income / mark-up accrued in local currency 85,984,679     73,588,636     

Income / mark-up accrued in foreign currencies 1,170,984       2,134,035       

Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 1,239,234       1,064,788       

Advance taxation (payments less provisions) 7,624,218       3,966,205       

Deferred cost on recognition of loan at fair value - note 16.1 4,931,905       -                 

Trade debts - unsecured - considered good 440,013          461,827          

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 396,746          406,862          

Receivable against trading of securities 40                   46,245            

Stationary and stamps in hand 235,261          285,087          

Receivable from defined benefit plan 170,221          -                 

Dividend receivable 7,409              4,453              

Margin against stand by letter of credit (SBLC) 822,391          -                 

Acceptances 17,215,992     14,053,824     

Others 573,991          425,248          

120,813,084   96,437,210     

Credit loss allowance / provision held against 

other assets - note 16.2 (710,638)        (212,988)        

Other assets - net of credit loss allowance / provision 120,102,446   96,224,222     

Surplus on revaluation of non-banking assets

acquired in satisfaction of claims 459,948          459,948          

Other assets - total 120,562,394   96,684,170     

16.1

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

16.2 Credit loss allowance / provision held against other assets

Advances, deposits, advance rent and other prepayments 4,838              4,838              

Acceptances 499,342          -                 

Others 206,458          208,150          

710,638          212,988          

(Un-audited)

This represents carrying amount of land located at Haider Road, Rawalpindi, which was classified to non current asset

held for sale in 2022 consequent to a sale agreement. The carrying amount includes revaluation surplus of Rs. 980,987

thousand at which amount the asset was transferred from property and equipment.
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(Rupees in '000)

This represents deferred portion of fair value loss arisen on initial recognition of loan to PIA Holding Company Limited

(PIAHCL). SBP through its letter BPRD/BRD/PIAHCL/733688-2024 dated August 01, 2024 has allowed staggering of such

fair value impact over a period of 6 years at rates of 5%, 10%, 15%, 20%, 25%, and 35% from year 1 to year 6,

accordingly, the Group has amortized 5% in the current period.

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)



(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

16.2.1 Movement in credit loss allowance / provision against other assets

Opening balance              212,989              182,608 

Impact of ECL recognized on adoption of IFRS 9              383,971                       -   

596,959            182,608            

Charge for the period / year              113,679                 2,756 

Reversal for the period / year                       -                     (260)

             113,679                 2,496 

Transfers / Other adjustments                       -                 27,885 

Closing balance              710,638              212,989 

17 BILLS PAYABLE

In Pakistan 13,561,049       12,394,336       

18 BORROWINGS

Secured

Borrowings from the State Bank of Pakistan under:

Export refinance scheme 16,610,063       19,840,120       

Long term financing facility 7,666,644         8,610,177         

Financing facility for storage of agricultural produce -                    14,770              

Renewable energy financing facility 3,900,330         3,905,513         

Refinance from SBP

Credit guarantee scheme for women entrepreneurs 33,267              12,700              

Temporary Economic Relief 10,975,245       11,947,741       

Modernization of SME 77,686              8,687                

Combating COVID-19 318,834            400,459            

Rupee based discounting of bills / receivable 3,836,642         3,707,901         

Working Capital Financing 58,900              -                    

43,477,611       48,448,068       

Repurchase agreement borrowings

State Bank of Pakistan 790,000,000     505,000,000     

Financial institutions 22,279,436       86,921,724       

812,279,436     591,921,724     

Refinance from Pakistan Mortgage Refinance Company 4,747,990         2,992,873         

Unsecured

Call borrowings 2,000,000         -                    

Overdrawn nostro accounts 27,158              -                    

862,532,195     643,362,665     

In local In foreign Total In local In foreign Total

19 DEPOSITS AND OTHER currency currencies currency currencies

ACCOUNTS

Customers

Current accounts 368,438,605      31,510,568    399,949,173      320,346,322      31,589,438       351,935,760     

Savings deposits 752,553,200      69,894,547    822,447,747      667,642,523      61,519,218       729,161,741     

Fixed deposits 130,246,312      31,003,688    161,250,000      160,821,348      30,642,438       191,463,786     

1,251,238,117   132,408,803  1,383,646,920   1,148,810,193   123,751,094     1,272,561,287  

Financial institutions

Current accounts 1,260,834          138,065         1,398,899          1,149,626          241,191            1,390,817         

Savings deposits 4,247,166          -                4,247,166          2,144,906          -                    2,144,906         

Fixed deposits 23,135,544        -                23,135,544        16,697,696        -                    16,697,696       

28,643,544        138,065         28,781,609        19,992,228        241,191            20,233,419       

1,279,881,661   132,546,868  1,412,428,529   1,168,802,421   123,992,285     1,292,794,706  

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

20 LEASE LIABILITIES

Outstanding amount at the beginning of the period / year 9,699,474         8,084,073         

Additions during the period / year 2,318,296         3,227,516         

Lease payments including interest (1,247,372)        (2,523,755)        

Interest expense for the period / year 697,985            1,061,886         

Termination and other adjustments (116,541)           (150,246)           

Outstanding amount at the end of the period / year 11,351,842       9,699,474         

20.1 Liabilities Outstanding

Not later than one year 1,082,448         1,143,794         

Later than one year and upto five years 4,160,693         3,925,528         

Over five years 6,108,701         4,630,152         

Total at the end of the period / year 11,351,842       9,699,474         
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 Rupees in '000 

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited) December 31, 2023 (Audited)



(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

21 SUBORDINATED DEBTS

Term Finance Certificates - VI (ADT-1) 6,000,000                           6,000,000                      

Term Finance Certificates - VII 6,000,000                           6,000,000                      

12,000,000                         12,000,000                    

21.1

Outstanding amount - 

Rupees in '000 6,000,000               6,000,000                           

Issue amount Rupees 6,000 million Rupees 6,000 million

Issue date July 03, 2018 March 17, 2020

Maturity Date Perpetual March 16, 2030

Rating AA- AA

Security Unsecured Unsecured

Listing Listed Listed

Profit payment frequency Payable six monthly Payable quarterly

Redemption Perpetual 109-120th month: 100%

Profit Rate Base Rate plus 1.50% Base Rate plus 1.20%

Call option

Lock-in-clause

Loss absorption clause

(Rupees in '000)

Term Finance Certificates - VI (ADT-1)

The Group has raised unsecured sub-ordinated loans through issuance of Term Finance Certificates to improve the Group's

capital adequacy. Liability to the TFC holders is subordinated to and rank inferior to all other indebtedness of the Group including

deposits and is not redeemable before maturity without prior approval of the SBP. The salient features of outstanding issues are

as follows:

Term Finance Certificates - VII

Exercisable after 60th month from the date of issue 

subject to approval by the SBP.

As per the lock-in requirement for Tier II Issues,

neither profit nor principal will be payable (even at

maturity) in respect of the TFC, if such payment will

result in a shortfall or increase in an existing shortfall

in the Group’s Leverage Ratio or Minimum Capital

Requirement or Capital Adequacy Ratio. That is, any

payment (profit and/or principal) in respect of the TFC

would be made, subject to the Group being in

compliance with the requirement of Leverage Ratio or

Minimum Capital Requirement or Capital Adequacy

Ratio.

Exercisable after 60 months from the date

of issue subject to approval by the SBP.

Payment of profit will be subject to the

condition that such payment will not result

in breach of the Group's regulatory

Minimum Capital Requirement or Capital

Adequacy Ratio set by SBP from time to

time. Any inability to exercise lock-in clause

or the non-cummulative features will

subject these TFCs to mandatory

conversion into common shares / write off

at the discretion of SBP.

The Instrument will be subject to loss

absorption and / or any other requirements

of SBP upon the occurrence of a Point of

Non-Viability event as per Section A-5-3 of

Annexure 5 of the Circular, which stipulates

that SBP may, at its option, fully and

permanently convert the TFCs into

common shares of the issuer and / or have

them immediately written off (either partially

or in full). Number of shares to be issued to

TFC holders at the time of conversion will

be equal to the ‘Outstanding Value of the

TFCs’ divided by market value per share of

the Group’s common share on the date of

trigger event as declared by SBP, subject

to a specified cap.
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As per Loss Absorbency Clause requirement for Tier II

capital purpose, the instrument will be subject to loss

absorbency and/or any other requirements under

SBP’s instructions on the subject. Upon the

occurrence of a Point of Non-Viability event as defined

under SBP BPRD Circular # 6 of 2013, SBP may at its

option, fully and permanently convert the TFCs into

common shares of the Group and/or have them

immediately written off (either partially or in full).

Number of shares to be issued to TFC holders at the

time of conversion will be equal to the ‘Outstanding

Face Value of the TFCs’ divided by market value per

share of the Group’s common share on the date of

trigger of Point of Non-Viability (PONV) as declared by

SBP subject to a cap of 245,042,630 shares.

Base Rate is  the simple average of the ask 

rate of six month KIBOR prevailing on the

base rate setting date.

Base Rate is the simple average of the ask rate of 

three month KIBOR prevailing on the base rate setting 

date



(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

22 OTHER LIABILITIES

Mark-up / return / interest payable in local currency 16,360,007    22,119,508    

Mark-up / return / interest payable in foreign currencies 1,363,654      1,267,444      

Unearned commission and income on bills discounted 1,822,384      2,003,160      

Accrued expenses 1,846,907      2,653,259      

Trade payables 1,552,240      1,461,674      

Advance payments 373,598         314,319         

Acceptances 17,215,992    14,053,824    

Dividend payable 233,158         193,493         

Advance against sale of non-banking assets 461,535         461,535         

Mark to market loss on forward foreign exchange contracts 151,805         1,322,589      

Branch adjustment account 284,974         525,732         

Payable to defined benefit plan -                 67,468           

Provision for employees' compensated absences 801,248         724,890         

Security deposit against lease / Ijarah financing 3,559,885      3,485,208      

Levies and taxes payable 2,069,533      2,087,179      

Workers' Welfare Fund 1,571,596      1,301,596      

Switch settlement accounts 2,680,574      1,375,528      

Credit loss allowance / provision against off-balance 

sheet obligations - note 22.1 1,787,683      160,558         

Payable to a borrower 898,666         -                 

Others 2,460,387      2,247,229      

57,495,826    57,826,193    

22.1 Credit loss allowance / provision against off-balance sheet obligations

Opening balance 160,558         134,767         

Impact of ECL recognized on adoption of IFRS 9 226,837         -                 

387,395         134,767         

Exchange adjustment -                 133                 

Charge for the period / year 1,400,288      26,319           

Reversal for the period / year -                 (661)               

Net charge 1,400,288      25,658           

Closing balance 1,787,683      160,558         

23 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of:

 - Securities measured at FVOCI - Debt (8,134,874)     -                 

 - Securities measured at FVOCI - Equity 2,147,114      -                 

 - Available for sale securities - Debt -                 (14,624,907)   

 - Available for sale securities - Equity -                 2,144,626      

 - Property and equipment 10,365,737    10,365,737    

 - Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 459,948         459,948         

4,837,925      (1,654,596)     

Deferred tax on deficit / (surplus) on revaluation of:

 - Securities measured at FVOCI - Debt 3,986,088      -                 

 - Securities measured at FVOCI - Equity (1,052,086)     -                 

 - Available for sale securities - Debt -                 7,166,205      

 - Available for sale securities - Equity -                 (1,050,867)     

2,934,002      6,115,338      

7,771,927      4,460,742      

(Rupees in '000)
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(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

24 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

- Guarantees - note 24.1 315,076,813   350,296,809   

- Commitments - note 24.2 558,937,204   506,769,966   

- Other contingent liabilities - note 24.3 1,414,970       1,429,701       

875,428,987   858,496,476   

24.1 Guarantees

Financial guarantees 4,940,529       7,400,327       

Performance guarantees 182,662,360   188,322,832   

Other guarantees 127,473,924   154,573,650   

315,076,813   350,296,809   

24.2 Commitments

Documentary credits and short-term trade-related transactions

- letters of credit 230,972,362   226,655,650   

Commitments in respect of:

- forward foreign exchange contracts - note 24.2.1 327,454,901   276,444,892   

- forward government securities transactions  - note 24.2.2 -                  2,000,000       

- non-government securities transactions - note 24.2.3 -                  1,174,056       

Commitments for acquisition of:

- property and equipment 262,750          255,774          

- intangible assets 247,191          239,594          

558,937,204   506,769,966   

24.2.1 Commitments in respect of forward foreign exchange contracts

Purchase 188,094,426   153,115,769   

Sale 139,360,475   123,329,123   

327,454,901   276,444,892   

The above commitments have maturities falling within one year.

24.2.2 Commitments in respect of government securities transactions

Sale -                  2,000,000       

-                  2,000,000       

24.2.3 Commitments in respect of non government securities transactions

Purchase -                  1,168,290       

Sale -                  5,766              

-                  1,174,056       

24.3 Other contingent liabilities

592,579          596,911          

822,391          832,790          

1,414,970       1,429,701       

This represents stand by letters of credit issued by a correspondent 

Bank on behalf of the Group.

(Rupees in '000)

These represent certain claims by third parties against the Group, which

are being contested in the Courts of law. Based on legal advice and / or

internal assessment, management is confident that the matters will be

decided in Group’s favor and the possibility of any outcome against the

Group is remote and accordingly no provision has been made in these

condensed interim consolidated financial statements.
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25 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Period ended Period ended

June 30, June 30,

2024 2023

26 MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED

On:

Loans and advances 69,894,403     51,765,694     

Investments 133,004,997   75,416,614     

Lendings to financial institutions 678,911          72,958            

Balances with banks 600,129          239,575          

Securities purchased under resale agreements 1,235,049       517,039          

205,413,489   128,011,880   

27 MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

On:

Deposits 90,881,835     67,807,224     

Borrowings 84,987,472     32,270,412     

Subordinated debts 1,360,377       1,165,762       

2,349,368       1,451,990       

Lease liability 697,985          495,230          

Fair value loss on recognition of financial asset at 

fair value - note 16.1 259,574          -                  

180,536,611   103,190,618   

28 FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

Branch banking customer fees 443,257          382,800          

Consumer finance related fees 42,049            47,729            

Card related fees (debit and credit cards) 883,917          712,684          

Credit related fees 232,674          433,658          

Investment banking fees 202,327          155,433          

Commission on trade 699,417          871,295          

Commission on guarantees 746,490          634,152          

Commission on remittances including home remittances 170,148          94,390            

Commission on bancassurance 13,188            16,503            

Brokerage revenue 216,178          -                  

Others 23,915            44,503            

3,673,560       3,393,147       

29 GAIN ON SECURITIES

Realised - note 29.1 318,445          16,289            

Unrealised gain on securities measured at FVTPL 581,574          9,476              

900,019          25,765            

29.1 Realised gain / (loss) on:

Federal Government Securities 269,236          (153,747)         

Shares 49,209            127,469          

Non Government Debt Securities -                  37,833            

Mutual Funds -                  4,734              

318,445          16,289            

-69-

Cost of FX swaps against foreign currency deposits / borrowings

(Rupees in '000)

The Group does not offer derivative products such as Interest Rate Swaps, Cross Currency Swaps,

Forward Rate Agreements or Foreign Exchange Options. The Group's Treasury and Investment

Banking Groups buy and sell derivative instruments such as Forward Exchange Contracts (FECs) and

Equity Futures (EFs).

(Un-audited)



Period ended Period ended

June 30, June 30,

2024 2023

30 OTHER INCOME

Gain on sale of property and equipment 6,702             4,019             

Rent of lockers 27,311           25,403           

Recovery of expenses from customers 163,301         160,482         

Termination of lease contracts under IFRS - 16 Leases 5,524             9,900             

Others 24,676           -                 

227,514         199,804         

31 OPERATING EXPENSES

Total compensation expenses - note 31.1 8,092,505      6,952,448      

Property expense

Rent and taxes 95,394           72,469           

Insurance 55,504           45,924           

Utilities cost 815,238         622,111         

Security (including guards) 474,830         381,112         

Repair & maintenance (including janitorial expenses) 263,792         211,294         

Depreciation on right-of-use assets 1,079,163      811,224         

Depreciation 150,435         120,980         

2,934,356      2,265,114      

Information technology expenses

Software maintenance 520,130         334,067         

Hardware maintenance 105,534         80,107           

Depreciation 175,476         113,404         

Amortisation 110,834         82,922           

Network charges 334,215         261,287         

1,246,189      871,787         

Other operating expenses

Directors' fees, allowances 21,680           15,200           

Fees and allowances to shariah board 4,818             4,746             

Rates, taxes, insurance etc. 70,354           89,800           

Legal and professional charges 54,036           48,917           

Brokerage and commission 159,113         100,672         

NIFT clearing charges 48,923           52,342           

Repair and maintenance 441,656         401,987         

Communications 884,550         475,841         

Stationery and printing 355,899         301,362         

Marketing, advertisement and publicity 148,978         54,077           

Donations -                 524,397         

Auditors' remuneration 35,719           26,389           

Travelling, conveyance and entertainment 263,273         194,534         

Depreciation 312,430         238,475         

Security service charges 354,641         356,972         

Training and development 13,058           11,603           

Deposit premium expense 428,803         351,160         

Outsourced service cost 283,203         102,216         

Other expenditure 306,946         159,049         

4,188,080      3,509,739      

16,461,130    13,599,088    

31.1 Total compensation expense

Managerial remuneration 6,321,896      5,194,287      

Charge for defined benefit / contribution plan 521,060         423,655         

Other staff cost - note 31.1.1 1,249,549      1,334,506      

8,092,505      6,952,448      

31.1.1

(Un-audited)

(Rupees in '000)

Other staff cost includes incentive to consumer sales staff, dearness allowance, cash handling allowance, staff

group insurance, provision for severance etc.
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32 This represents penalties imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan.

Period ended Period ended

June 30, June 30,

2024 2023

33 CREDIT LOSS ALLOWANCE / PROVISIONS AND WRITE OFFS - NET

Credit loss allowance / provision charge against investments - note 9.3.1 (495,888)           231,427             

Credit loss allowance / provision charge against loans and advances - note 10.3 (1,416,987)        447,517             

Credit loss allowance against other assets - 16.2.1 113,679             -                    

Credit loss allowance / (reversal of provision) against repurchase agreement lendings (64)                    (14,860)             

Credit loss allowance / (reversal of provision) against 

off-balance sheet obligations - note 22.1 1,400,288          (649)                  

Credit loss allowance / provision charge against balances with other banks (7)                      37                     

Recovery of written off / charged off bad debts (53,312)             (46,196)             

(452,291)           617,276             

34 TAXATION

Current 8,050,819          8,439,244          

Deferred 121,398             (271,007)           

8,172,217          8,168,237          

34.1 Tax status and contingencies

i)

ii)

iii)

Period ended Period ended

June 30, June 30,

2024 2023

35 BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Profit for the period - Rupees in '000 8,136,689          8,837,543          

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares - numbers 1,449,299,207   1,449,299,207   

Basic earnings per share - Rupees 5.61                  6.10                  

-71-

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Group, therefore dilutive earnings per share have not been

presented separately.

(Un-audited)

(Rupees in '000)

(Un-audited)

The Group has filed tax returns for and up to tax year 2023. The assessments for and up to tax year 2023 were amended by

the tax authorities creating accumulated additional tax demand, mainly in the matters of admissibility of recoveries against

doubtful debts for Rs 1,119 million, provision for diminution in the value of investments for Rs 3,144.44 million, bad debts

written off for Rs 242.892 million, provision for substandard advances for Rs 74.95 million, Provision against other

assets/fixed assets for Rs 145.81 million, disallowance of employee benefit expenses Rs 228.680 Million, disallowance of

depreciation on lease assets Rs 773.88 and Other disallowances of expenses/credits for Rs 551.78 million. Group’s Appeals

against these orders are currently pending before Commissioner Appeals, Appellate Tribunal and Islamabad High Court. The

management and tax advisor of the Group are confident that these matters will be decided in favor of the Group and

consequently no provision has been made thereon. Tax payments by the Group against certain matters are being carried

forward as receivable, as management and tax advisor of the Group are confident of their realization.

Tax returns of ALL have been filed for and up to tax year 2010. The returns for the tax years 2003 to 2010 were amended by

the tax authorities mainly in the matter of admissibility of initial allowance claimed on leased vehicles. On appeals filed by

ALL, partial relief was provided by the CIR(A) by allowing initial allowance on commercial vehicles. Re-assessment has not

yet been carried out by the tax department. A tax demand is however not likely to arise after re-assessment. 

Consequent upon the amalgamation with and into the Group, the outstanding tax issues relating to Askari Leasing Limited

(ALL) are as follows:

For and up to the assessment years 2002-2003, reference applications filed by the tax authorities in the matter of

computation of lease income are pending decisions by the High Court. However, the likelihood of an adverse decision is

considered low due to a favorable decision of the High Court in a parallel case.

During the year ended December 31 2023, the Federal Government issued S.R.O 1588 (l)/2023 on 21 November 2023

under section 99D of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, whereby the banking sector was specified the sector for the payment

of additional tax on windfall income. Through said S.R.O, the Federal Government also specified the method to determine

windfall income, tax rate to be applied on such windfall income and tax years under scope. The Group has challenged the

S.R.O through petition before the Honorable Islamabad High Court with regards to retrospective application of Section 99D

of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for tax years 2022 and 2023. The Honorable Islamabad High Court through its order

dated 30 November 2023 has suspended the operation of S.R.O.1588 (l)/2023 and the said injunctive order continues to

operate till date of next hearing for which no date has been fixed yet. Management based on the legal advisor opinion

believes that the Group has reasonably good chance to succeed in this case and therefore has not recognized any provision

in the financial statements. Additional tax on windfall income for tax years 2022 and 2023 is estimated to be Rs. 2,189

million.



36 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

36.1 Fair value of financial assets

Level 1:

Level 2:

Level 3:

Valuation techniques used in determination of fair values within level 2 and level 3

Federal Government Securities

Non Government Debt Securities

Foreign Government Debt Securities

Unit of Mutual Funds

Fixed Assets and Non Banking Assets

Acquired in Satisfaction of Claims
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Land and Non Banking assets acquired in satisfaction of

claims are valued on a periodic basis using professional

valuers. The valuation is based on their assessments of the

market value of the assets. The effect of changes in the

unobservable inputs used in the valuations cannot be

determined with certainty. Accordingly, a qualitative

disclosure of sensitivity has not been presented in these

condensed interim consolidated financial statements.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in these consolidated financial

statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement.

Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets (Pakistan Stock

Exchange) for identical assets or liabilities.

Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are

observable for the assets or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from

prices) available at MUFAP and Reuters page.

Fair value measurements using input for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

The fair values of Federal Government Securities are

determined on the basis of rates / prices sourced from

Reuters.

Non Government Debt Securities are valued on the basis of

rates announced by Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan

(MUFAP).

Foreign Government Debt Securities are valued on the basis

of rates taken from custodian of the securities which are

usually drawn from Bloomberg.

Fair values of mutual funds are determined based on their

net asset values as published at the close of each business

day.

In the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not

significantly different from their carrying values since they are either short-term in nature or, in the case of

customer advances, deposits and certain long term borrowings, are frequently repriced.

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the 

inputs used in making the measurements:

Forward foreign exchange contracts and 

Forward Government securities transactions

The fair values of forward foreign exchange contracts and

forward Government securities transactions are determined

using forward pricing calculations. 

The fair value of quoted securities other than those classified as Amortised Cost, is based on quoted market

price. Quoted securities classified as Amortised Cost are carried at cost. The fair value of unquoted equity

securities, other than investments in associates and subsidiaries, is determined on the basis of the break-up

value of these investments as per their latest available audited financial statements.

The fair value of unquoted debt securities, fixed term advances, fixed term deposits and borrowings, other

assets and other liabilities cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to the absence of a current and

active market for such assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments.



Carrying / 

Notional Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

On balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets - measured at fair value

Investments

Federal Government Securities 1,279,336,456       6,748,604     1,272,587,852    -                 1,279,336,456  

Shares 6,945,035              6,945,035     -                      -                 6,945,035         

Units of open end mutual funds 2,433,350              1,543,880     889,470              -                 2,433,350         

Fully paid preference shares 23,579                   23,579          -                      -                 23,579              

Non Government Debt Securities 14,082,135            -                14,082,135         -                 14,082,135       

1,302,820,555       15,261,098   1,287,559,457    -                 1,302,820,555  

Financial assets - disclosed but not 

measured at fair value

Investments

        Federal Government Securities 66,882,230            2,614,961     64,267,269         -                 66,882,230       

        Unlisted shares 350,000                 -                -                      -                 -                    

Cash and balances with treasury banks 119,301,787          -                -                      -                 -                    

Balances with other banks 13,141,612            -                -                      -                 -                    

Advances 717,285,590          -                -                      -                 -                    

Other assets 104,247,295          -                -                      -                 -                    

1,021,208,514       2,614,961     64,267,269         -                 66,882,230       

Off-balance sheet financial instruments - 

measured at fair value

Forward purchase of foreign exchange 188,094,426          -                (1,942,305)          -                 (1,942,305)        

Forward sale of foreign exchange 139,360,475          -                1,790,500           -                 1,790,500         

Carrying / Notional 

Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

On balance sheet financial instruments

Financial assets - measured at fair value

Investments

Federal Government Securities 1,102,510,824       8,421,152     1,094,089,672    -                 1,102,510,824  

Shares 6,256,977              6,256,977     -                      -                 6,256,977         

Units of open end mutual funds 960,596                 149,958        810,638              -                 960,596            

Fully paid preference shares 28,150                   28,150          -                      -                 28,150              

Non Government Debt Securities 14,449,154            -                14,449,154         -                 14,449,154       

1,124,205,701       14,856,237   1,109,349,464    -                 1,124,205,701  

Financial assets - disclosed but not 

measured at fair value

Investments

Federal Government Securities 56,897,624            10,756,335   46,141,289         -                 56,897,624       

Shares 350,000                 -                -                      -                 -                    

Units of open end mutual funds 1,044,333              -                -                      -                 -                    

Cash and balances with treasury banks 160,087,394          -                -                      -                 -                    

Balances with other banks 14,761,177            -                -                      -                 -                    

Advances 633,046,149          -                -                      -                 -                    

Other assets 90,346,735            -                -                      -                 -                    

956,533,412          10,756,335   46,141,289         -                 56,897,624       

Off-balance sheet financial instruments - 

measured at fair value

Forward purchase of foreign exchange 153,115,769          -                (2,798,564)          -                 (2,798,564)        

Forward sale of foreign exchange 123,329,123          -                1,475,975           -                 1,475,975         

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31, 

2024 2023

36.2 Fair value of non-financial assets

Level 3 Level 3

Fixed assets

Property and equipment (freehold and leasehold land) 13,238,392    13,238,392       

Assets held for sale 1,750,000      1,750,000         

Other assets

Non-banking assets acquired in satisfaction of claims 856,694         866,810            
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The Group’s policy is to recognize transfers into and out of the different fair value hierarchy levels at the date the event or change in

circumstances that caused such transfer to takes place. There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the period.

(Rupees in '000)

The following table provides the fair values of those of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that are recognized or disclosed at fair

value in these consolidated condensed interim financial statements:

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)

(Rupees in '000)

December 31, 2023 (Audited)

(Rupees in '000)



37 Segment Information

37.1 Segment details with respect to Business Activities

The segment analysis with respect to business activity is as follows:

Branch Corporate Consumer Islamic Foreign Head Office

banking banking Treasury banking banking operations / others Total

Profit and loss

Net mark-up / return / profit (59,765,179)     29,917,317    43,815,380        2,479,309      9,195,978      784,747          (1,550,674)     24,876,878        

Inter segment revenue - net 74,243,838      (27,607,590)   (46,984,388)      (1,864,887)     (5,289,020)     (398,712)        7,900,759      -                     

Non mark-up / return / interest income 1,233,382        2,419,469      2,904,514          287,538          435,253          1,916              438,067          7,720,139          

Total income 15,712,041      4,729,196      (264,494)            901,960          4,342,211      387,951          6,788,152      32,597,017        

Segment direct expenses 8,748,295        612,723          221,356             879,100          1,918,203      127,023          4,233,702      16,740,402        

Inter segment expense allocation 342,854           671,819          4,111                 19,810            -                  -                  (1,038,594)     -                     

Total expenses 9,091,149        1,284,542      225,467             898,910          1,918,203      127,023          3,195,108      16,740,402        

Credit loss allowance and write offs - net 25,452             (87,439)          50,993               (244,035)        1,077,331      (454,617)        (819,976)        (452,291)            

Profit before tax 6,595,440        3,532,093      (540,954)            247,085          1,346,677      715,545          4,413,020      16,308,906        

Statement of financial position

Cash and bank balances 39,192,884      -                  80,200,455        822,390          11,950,327    118,314          159,029          132,443,399      

Investments -                   8,936,474      1,299,782,439   -                  51,578,112    9,363,564      552,568          1,370,213,157   

Lendings to financial institutions -                   -                  86,184,640        -                  -                  -                  -                  86,184,640        

Advances - performing - net of credit loss allowance 12,740,141      534,067,603  -                     22,069,824    136,267,039  916,994          9,203,933      715,265,534      

Advances - non-performing - net of credit loss allowance 40,596             1,528,978      -                     69,086            381,397          -                  -                  2,020,057          

Others 1,329,565        39,362,517    50,360,158        1,051,347      14,164,381    211,021          57,508,596    163,987,585      

Total Assets 53,303,186      583,895,572  1,516,527,692   24,012,647    214,341,256  10,609,893    67,424,126    2,470,114,372   

Borrowings 1,409,009        37,669,501    814,306,592      4,747,991      4,399,102      -                  -                  862,532,195      

Subordinated debts -                   -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  12,000,000    12,000,000        

Deposits and other accounts 978,955,538    299,213,932  -                     3,201              132,994,021  1,261,837      -                  1,412,428,529   

Net inter segment balances - net (945,717,429)   223,091,000  693,692,139      18,638,514    51,420,446    3,437,514      (44,562,184)   -                     

Others 18,656,068      23,921,139    8,528,961          622,941          8,667,604      5,910,542      16,101,462    82,408,717        

Total liabilities 53,303,186      583,895,572  1,516,527,692   24,012,647    197,481,173  10,609,893    (16,460,722)   2,369,369,441   

Equity -                   -                  -                     -                  16,860,083    -                  83,884,847    100,744,930      

Total Equity and liabilities 53,303,186      583,895,572  1,516,527,692   24,012,647    214,341,256  10,609,893    67,424,126    2,470,114,371   

Contingencies and commitments 6,010,355        518,631,558  325,598,561      1,037,167      23,117,215    -                  1,034,131      875,428,987      

June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)

(Rupees in '000)

-74-



Branch Corporate Consumer Islamic Foreign Head Office

banking banking Treasury banking banking operations / others Total

Profit and loss

Net mark-up / return / profit (40,637,694)     17,975,386    39,738,449        2,213,650      5,823,754      1,121,604      (1,413,887)     24,821,262        

Inter segment revenue - net 58,025,034      (15,577,459)   (44,495,586)      (1,676,680)     (1,776,600)     (831,918)        6,333,209      -                     

Non mark-up / return / interest income 1,090,027        2,279,514      2,494,311          376,161          357,571          16,154            149,208          6,762,946          

Total income 18,477,367      4,677,441      (2,262,826)        913,131          4,404,725      305,840          5,068,530      31,584,208        

Segment direct expenses 7,360,735        491,246          210,020             753,599          1,613,147      116,030          3,416,375      13,961,152        

Inter segment expense allocation 675,266           495,989          10,506               25,972            -                  -                  (1,207,733)     -                     

Total expenses 8,036,001        987,235          220,526             779,571          1,613,147      116,030          2,208,642      13,961,152        

Provisions / (reversal of provisions) and write offs - net (188,600)          609,275          183,504             (12,751)          (40,595)          -                  66,443            617,276             

Profit before tax 10,629,966      3,080,931      (2,666,856)        146,311          2,832,173      189,810          2,793,445      17,005,780        

Statement of financial position

Cash and bank balances 33,208,938      -                  129,715,500      832,790          10,058,919    60,278            972,219          174,848,644      

Investments -                   9,252,065      1,102,004,077   -                  51,493,187    19,177,486    570,843          1,182,497,658   

Advances - performing - net of provision 13,991,028      469,036,336  -                     20,306,104    114,745,256  2,876,637      8,663,896      629,619,257      

Advances - non-performing - net of provision 259,102           2,237,228      -                     74,662            855,900          -                  -                  3,426,892          

Others 1,084,252        30,473,445    48,204,707        915,181          10,533,982    405,421          43,763,596    135,380,584      

Total Assets 48,543,320      510,999,074  1,279,924,284   22,128,737    187,687,244  22,519,822    53,970,554    2,125,773,035   

Borrowings 1,574,075        41,338,149    591,921,725      2,992,873      5,535,843      -                  -                  643,362,665      

Subordinated debts -                   -                  -                     -                  -                  -                  12,000,000    12,000,000        

Deposits and other accounts 879,331,340    293,376,734  -                     250                 118,670,004  1,416,378      -                  1,292,794,706   

Net inter segment balances - net (851,827,275)   149,905,856  677,830,555      18,475,360    38,253,559    16,939,831    (49,577,886)   -                     

Others 19,465,180      26,378,335    10,172,004        660,254          8,249,821      4,163,613      10,830,796    79,920,003        

Total liabilities 48,543,320      510,999,074  1,279,924,284   22,128,737    170,709,227  22,519,822    (26,747,090)   2,028,077,374   

Equity -                   -                  -                     -                  16,978,017    -                  80,717,644    97,695,661        

Total Equity and liabilities 48,543,320      510,999,074  1,279,924,284   22,128,737    187,687,244  22,519,822    53,970,554    2,125,773,035   

Contingencies and commitments 6,016,566        548,078,423  276,081,621      832,790          26,459,326    -                  1,027,750      858,496,476      
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(Rupees in '000)

June 30, 2023 (Un-audited)



38 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties and balances are as follows:

Parent Directors

Key

management 

personnel

Other related 

parties Parent Directors

Key

management 

personnel

Other related 

parties

Investments

Opening balance -                            -                 -                     1,420,051              -                      -                 -                 1,159,768          

Investment made during the period / year -                            -                 -                     -                         -                      -                 -                 -                     

Revaluation adjustment -                            -                 -                     (500,000)                -                      -                 -                 262,947             

Investment redeemed / disposed off during the period / year -                            -                 -                     363,372                 -                      -                 -                 (2,664)                

Transfer in / (out) - net -                            -                 -                     750,000                 -                      -                 -                 -                     

Closing balance -                            -                 -                     2,033,423              -                      -                 -                 1,420,051          

Credit loss allowance / provisions for diminution in value of investments -                            -                 -                     5,680                     -                      -                 -                 82,113               

Advances 

Opening balance 8,108,881                 -                 496,686             25,003,594            29,986,315         60                   507,549          16,783,652        

Addition during the period / year 296,730,749             13,690            493,467             124,889,722          1,377,976,167    15,000            533,437          209,693,144      

Repaid during the period / year (300,809,697)            (13,466)          (578,278)            (126,413,936)         (1,399,853,601)   (15,060)          (544,300)        (213,910,777)     

Transfer in / (out) - net -                            -                 -                     (12,212,093)           -                      -                 -                 12,437,575        

Closing balance 4,029,933                 224                 411,875             11,267,287            8,108,881           -                 496,686          25,003,594        

Other Assets

Interest / mark-up receivable 68,846                      -                   69,882               116,178                 171,099              -                 68,627            886,474             

Advance rent 249                           -                   -                     -                         1,380                  -                 -                 -                     

Acceptances -                            -                   -                     103,495                 -                      -                 -                 -                     

Receivable from staff retirement fund -                            -                   -                     170,221                 -                      -                 -                 -                     

Others -                            -                 -                     -                         106                     -                 -                 -                     

Borrowings

Opening balance -                            -                 -                     2,992,873              -                      -                 -                 3,366,079          

Borrowings during the period / year -                            -                 -                     2,000,000              -                      -                 -                 1,000,000          

Settled during the period / year -                            -                 -                     (244,882)                -                      -                 -                 (1,373,206)         

Closing balance -                            -                 -                     4,747,991              -                      -                 -                 2,992,873          

Deposits and other accounts

Opening balance 39,101,224               63,502            299,420             49,059,956            38,816,364         34,614            193,107          38,455,796        

Received during the period / year 664,448,690             236,767          1,234,413          582,560,700          1,786,530,029    556,261          1,843,093       988,872,329      

Withdrawn during the period / year (658,279,464)            (222,727)        (1,202,007)         (596,915,714)         (1,786,245,169)   (521,157)        (1,707,626)     (978,274,385)     

Transfer in / (out) - net -                            (39,395)          -                     (93,187)                  -                      (6,216)            (29,154)          6,216                 

Closing balance 45,270,450               38,147            331,826             34,611,755            39,101,224         63,502            299,420          49,059,956        

Other Liabilities

Interest / mark-up payable 3,903,704                 -                 441                    500,801                 2,574,737           7                     2,964              715,559             

Payable to staff retirement fund -                            -                 -                     -                         -                      -                 -                 67,468               

Acceptances -                            -                 -                     103,495                 -                      -                 -                 -                     

Security deposits payable -                            -                 -                     577,309                 -                      -                 -                 462,570             

Others -                            -                 77,928               56,058                   25                       1,667              58,608            71,818               

Guarantees and Commitments

Contingencies and Commitments 440,747                    -                 -                     8,298,641              225,219              -                 -                 4,476,687          

Others

Dividend paid 2,605,478                 -                 -                     -                         -                      -                 -                 -                     

Securities held as custodian 8,962,500                 -                 45,995               11,493,470            -                      -                 -                 -                     

Securities given as collateral -                            -                 -                     -                         13,699,456         -                 48,821            10,493,034        
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----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Fauji Consortium comprising of Fauji Foundation, Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited and Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited (the Parent) holds 71.91% of the Group's share capital at the period end. The Group has related party relationships

with entities under common directorship, its directors, key management personnel, entities over which the directors are able to exercise significant influence and employees' funds.

The Group enters into transactions with related parties in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms as for comparable transactions with person of similar standing. Contributions to and accruals in respect of

staff retirement benefits and other benefit plans are made in accordance with the actuarial valuations / terms of the contribution plan. Remuneration to the executives / officers is determined in accordance with the terms of their

appointment.

As at December 31, 2023 (Audited)As at June 30, 2024 (Un-audited)



Parent Directors

Key

management 

personnel

Other related 

parties Parent Directors

Key

management 

personnel

Other related 

parties

Income

Mark-up / return / interest earned 145,035          12                   9,182              652,501            207,620          -                 5,283              2,523,478       

Fee and commission received 881                 -                 -                 26,618              505                 -                 -                 33,577            

Dividend income -                 -                 -                 250,007            -                 -                 -                 124,793          

Expense

Mark-up / return / interest expensed 4,118,564       2,982              32,890            3,205,571         4,006,138       597                 21,819            2,356,502       

Charge to defined benefit plan -                 -                 -                 324,040            -                 -                 -                 164,141          

Contribution to defined contribution plan -                 -                 -                 197,020            -                 -                 -                 166,693          

Remuneration and allownces -                 -                 646,815          4,818                -                 -                 545,403          4,746              

Rent 1,495              -                 -                 -                   1,029              -                 -                 -                 

Communications -                 -                 -                 100,732            -                 -                 -                 62,471            

Brokerage and Commission -                 -                 -                 54,810              -                 -                 -                 43,834            

Directors' Fee, Allowances -                 21,680            -                 -                   -                 15,200            -                 -                 

Donations -                 -                 -                 -                   524,397          -                 -                 -                 

Others 1,175              -                 -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 

In addition to above, rent free sub-branches are operating at FFC Sona Tower, FFBL Tower and Foundation University (along with Booths and ATMs).

The term 'key management personnel' has the same meaning as defined in IAS 24 - Related party disclosures. 
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For the period ended June 30, 2023 (Un-Audited)

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

For the period ended June 30, 2024 (Un-Audited)



39 CAPITAL ADEQUACY, LEVERAGE RATIO & LIQUIDITY REQUIREMENTS

(Un-audited) (Audited)

June 30, December 31,

2024 2023

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):

Paid-up capital (net of losses)                                                                                                                                14,492,992 14,492,992

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR):

Eligible Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) Capital 90,279,504       88,193,637       

Eligible Additional Tier 1 (ADT 1) Capital 5,835,000         5,649,000         

Total Eligible Tier 1 Capital 96,114,504       93,842,637       

Eligible Tier 2 Capital 16,381,892       13,220,036       

Total Eligible Capital (Tier 1 + Tier 2) 112,496,396     107,062,673     

Risk Weighted Assets (RWAs):

Credit Risk 418,928,456     451,392,577     

Market Risk 56,935,869       29,300,677       

Operational Risk 102,809,844     102,809,844     

Total 578,674,170     583,503,098     

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy ratio 15.60% 15.11%

Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 16.61% 16.08%

Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 19.44% 18.35%

Leverage Ratio (LR):

Eligible Tier-1 Capital 96,114,504       93,842,637       

Total Exposures 2,962,583,459  2,611,849,837  

Leverage Ratio                                                                                                                                            3.24% 3.59%

Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR):

Total High Quality Liquid Assets 605,135,525     649,069,790     

Total Net Cash Outflow 267,600,907     322,740,993     

Liquidity Coverage Ratio 226.13% 201.11%

Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR):

Total Available Stable Funding 1,424,318,071  1,314,070,873  

Total Required Stable Funding 671,904,959     610,829,100     

Net Stable Funding Ratio 211.98% 215.13%

40 RECLASSIFICATION OF COMPARATIVE FIGURES

41 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION

-sd- -sd- -sd- -sd-

Chief Financial Officer / A. President & CE Director Director Chairman

(Rupees in '000)

Where necessary, corresponding figures have been regrouped to conform to the presentation of current period amounts. Further,

the regrouping does not have an impact on previously reported condensed interim consolidated statement of financial position or

profit and loss account.

These consolidated condensed interim financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on August 29,

2024.
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